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‘ ® VIKRAN ENGINEERING LIMITED
(Formerly Known as VIKRAN ENGINEERING & EXIM PRIVATE LIMITED)

NOTICE OF 177THANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that an 17thAnnualGeneral Meeting of the Members of
Vikran Engineering Limited (Formerly known as Vikran Engineering & Exim
Private Limited) (“Company”) will be held on Monday, 25" August, 2025 at 03.00 P.M.
IST through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/Other Audio-Visual Means (“OVAM”)to
transact the following business:

This notice of meeting is given pursuant to Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013
and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) (“Companies Act”) in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company. [This notice is a shorter notice of 1
days given pursuant to Section 101(1) of the Companies Act, in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company, after obtaining requisite consents from the
Members. |

Ordinary Business:

1. To consider and adopt the Annual Audited financial statements of the
Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 consisting of the Balance
Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement together with the
reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To declare a final dividend of Rs. 0.21/- (Rupees zero point two one paise only)
per equity share of Rs. 1/- each of the Company for the financial year ended
31st March, 2025.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Avinash Ashok Markhedkar (DIN:
03089201), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for
reappointment.

Special Business:

4. HOLDING OF OFFICE OR PLACE BY MRS. KANCHAN MARKHEDKAR

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without
modification(s) as an Ordinary Resolution: -

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 177, 188 (1) (f) and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 15 of the
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 (“Act”) (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactments thereof for the time being in
force), and Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
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‘ ® VIKRAN ENGINEERING LIMITED
(Formerly Known as VIKRAN ENGINEERING & EXIM PRIVATE LIMITED)

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (“the Listing
Regulations”) (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof, for the time being in force) and subject to such other approvals,
consents, permissions and sanctions of other authorities as may be necessary
and as per the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee
and Audit Committee and pursuant to approval of the Board of the Company
dated 18t August 2025, the consent of the Members of the Company be and is
hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred
to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed to include any Committee of the
Board), to renew /enter into new/ further contracts/ arrangements/
agreements/ transactions (including any modifications, alterations,
amendments or renewal thereto), in the ordinary course of business for Mrs.
Kanchan Markhedkar, (Head of Human Resource and Administration) being
related party, to continue to hold an office or place of profit in the company for
the period of five (5) years with retrospective effect from 1st April 2025 to 31st
March 2030 subject to the remuneration of Rs 2,89,85,700(Rupees Two crores
Eighty Nine Lakhs Eighty Five Thousand Seven Hundred only) per annum and
such other perquisite, allowances, incentives, benefits, facilities, schemes,
reimbursements, leave encashment, provident fund contribution, gratuity,
health and other insurances, vehicle or any other kind of benefit as granted to
senior employees of the Company as per rules and policies of the Company, as
applicable, from time to time on terms and conditions including remuneration
as may be agreed by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Audit
Committee and Board of Directors of the Company and as further set out in the
Explanatory Statement annexed to this Notice.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of any statutory amendment,
modification or relaxation in the Act and or the Rules in this regard, the Board
of Directors (and any committee thereof, if so, required by law) be and are
hereby authorised to act in accordance with such applicable law without
further reference to, or requirement to seek approval of the members of the
Company

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to alter,
modify and vary the terms and conditions of employment of, and the
remuneration, including salary, allowances, perquisites, incentives and benefits
payable to Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar, to the extent the Board may deem fit,
and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its sole and
absolute discretion deem necessary, expedient, usual or proper to give etfect to
this Resolution and to sign and file necessary documents, e-form with the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs.”
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‘ ® VIKRAN ENGINEERING LIMITED
(Formerly Known as VIKRAN ENGINEERING & EXIM PRIVATE LIMITED)

5. HOLDING OF OFFICE OR PLACE BY MR. VIPUL MARKHEDKAR

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without
modification(s) as an Ordinary Resolution: -

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 177, Section 188 (1) (f) and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 15 of
the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 (“Act”)
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactments thereof for the time
being in force), and Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (“the
Listing Regulations”) (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and subject to such other
approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions of other authorities as may be
necessary and as per the approval of Nomination & Remuneration Committee
and Audit Committee and the Board of the Company, the consent of the
Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors
of the Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which term shall be
deemed to include any Committee of the Board), to renew /enter into new/
further contracts/ arrangements/ agreements/ transactions (including any
modifications, alterations, amendments or renewal thereto), in the ordinary
course of business for Mr. Vipul Markhedkar, (Head of Business
Development)being related party, to continue to hold an office or place of profit
in the company for the period of five (5) years with retrospective effect from 1st
April 2025 to 31st March 2030 subject to the remuneration of Rs 1,51,64,667/- (
Rupees One Crores Fifty One Lakhs Sixty Four Thousand Six Hundred Sixty
Seven one only) per annum and such other perquisite, allowances, incentives,
benefits, facilities, schemes, reimbursements, leave encashment, provident fund
contribution, gratuity, health and other insurances, vehicle or any other kind of
benefit as granted to senior employees of the Company as per rules and policies
of the Company, as applicable, from time to time on terms and conditions
including remuneration as may be agreed by the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee and Board of Directors of the Company and as
further set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed to this Notice.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of any statutory amendment,
modification or relaxation in the Act and or the Rules in this regard, the Board
of Directors (and any committee thereof, if so, required by law) be and are
hereby authorised to act in accordance with such applicable law without
further reference to, or requirement to seek approval of the members of the
Company
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‘ ® VIKRAN ENGINEERING LIMITED
(Formerly Known as VIKRAN ENGINEERING & EXIM PRIVATE LIMITED)

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to alter,
modify and vary the terms and conditions of employment of, and the
remuneration, including salary, allowances, perquisites, incentives and benefits
payable to Mr. Vipul Markhedkar, to the extent the Board may deem fit, and to
do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its sole and absolute
discretion deem necessary, expedient, usual or proper to give effect to this
Resolution to sign and file necessary documents, e-form with the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs.”

6. TO RATIFY RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS ENTERED IN THE
FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-2025

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without
modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: -

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the Section 188 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies
(Meetings of Board & its Powers) Rules, 2014, as applicable and any
amendments thereto and in accordance with the omnibus approval granted by
the Audit Committee and the consent accorded by the Board of the Directors of
the Company for the related party transactions as entered into by the Company
with Related Parties in the ordinary course of business on an arm’s length basis
holding an office or place of profit during the Financial Year 2024-2025 as
detailed herein below, the value of which exceeds the limits as specified under
Rule 15 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its powers) Rules 2014, be and
are hereby ratified and approved by the Members.

Sr. | Name of the Party Nature of the | The amount of
No. Transaction the Transaction

(Rs. In lakhs)

1.. Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar - Wife of | Remuneration | 264
Chairman and Managing Director

2. Mr. Vipul Markhedkar - Son of |Remuneration | 138
Chairman and Managing Director
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‘ ® VIKRAN ENGINEERING LIMITED
(Formerly Known as VIKRAN ENGINEERING & EXIM PRIVATE LIMITED)

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby
authorised to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise with regard
to giving effect to this Resolution and to do all such acts, deeds, things as may
be necessary in its absolute discretion, to finalize any documents and writings
related thereto and to sign and file necessary documents, e-form with the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs.”

7. RATIFICATION OF REMUNERATION TO COST AUDITORS FOR
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 315T MARCH, 2026:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without
modification(s) as an Ordinary Resolution: -

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the
remuneration payable to M/s. R.R, Ahirwar & Associates ., Cost Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 103745), appointed by the Board of Directors on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, as Cost Auditors of the Company to
conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year
ending 31st March, 2026, amounting to Rs 4,00,000/-(Rupees Forty Lakhs) plus
applicable taxes and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses incurred in
connection with the aforesaid audit, be and is hereby ratified.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board and/or any person authorised by the
Board, be and is hereby authorised severally to settle any question, difficulty or
doubt, that may arise in giving effect to this resolution and to do all such acts,
deeds and things as may be necessary, expedient or desirable for the purpose of
giving effect to this resolution.”
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‘ ® VIKRAN ENGINEERING LIMITED
(Formerly Known as VIKRAN ENGINEERING & EXIM PRIVATE LIMITED)

8. TO APPOINT M/S GEETA CANABAR & ASSOCIATES, COMPANY
SECRETARIES AS SECRETARIAL AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without
modification(s) as an Ordinary Resolution: -

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 179 and 204 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the rules
made thereunder, and Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time,
and based on the recommendations of the Audit Committee and the Board of
Directors, the approval of the members be and is hereby accorded for the
appointment of M/s Geeta Canabar & Associates, Company Secretaries (COP
No -8330, Membership No: 8702) as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a
term of five consecutive years, commencing from Financial Year 2025-26 till
Financial Year 2029-30 at such remuneration and on such terms and conditions
as may be determined by the Board of Directors(including its committees
thereof), and to avail any other services, certificates, or reports as may be
permissible under applicable laws.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company,
(including its committees thereof), be and is hereby authorised to do all such
acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed proper, necessary, or
expedient, including filing the requisite forms or submission of documents
with any authority or accepting any modifications to the clauses as required by
such authorities, for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution and for
matters connected therewith, or incidental thereto.

By Order of the Board
For Vikran Engineering Limited
(Formerly known as Vikran Engineering & Exim Limited)

RAKESH ASHOK MARKHEDKAR
Managing Director

DIN: 07009284

Place: Thane
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VIKRAN ENGINEERING LIMITED
(Formerly Known as VIKRAN ENGINEERING & EXIM PRIVATE LIMITED)

Date: 18th August 2025

Registered office :

401, Odyssey IT Park, Road No. 9,
Industrial Wagle Estate,
Thane-400604

Notes:

i.

iii.

iv.

Registered & Corporate Office : 401, Odyssey I.T. Park, Road No. 9, Wagle Industrial Estate, Thane, Maharashtra - 400604.

The Company is convening the Annual General Meeting (AGM) through video
conferencing and no physical presence of members or Directors shall be required.
The deemed venue of this Annual General Meeting shall be considered as the
registered office of the Company situated at 401, Odyssey IT Park, Road No. 9,
Wagle Industrial Estate, Thane(W), Mumbai. - 400604 India.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has, vide its General Circular dated
September 25, 2023, read together with circulars dated April 8, 2020, April 13,
2020, May 5, 2020, January 13, 2021, December 8, 2021, December 14, 2021, May 5,
2022 and December 28, 2022 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”),
permitted convening the Annual General Meeting (“AGM” / “Meeting”) through
Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), without
physical presence of the members at a common venue. In accordance with the
MCA Circulars and applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read
with Rules made thereunder, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC
/ OAVM. The deemed venue for the AGM shall be the registered office of the
Company.

The Company is providing two-way teleconferencing facility for the ease of
participation of the members. Link for joining the meeting will be shared along
with the notice of this meeting or through separate email.

It is being informed that physical presence of the members has been dispensed
with for attending the AGM through VC/OAVM, therefore, the facility to appoint
proxy to attend and cast vote for the members will not be available for this AGM
and the Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and route map are not annexed to this
Notice.

The Meeting is being convened at a shorter notice, with the written consent of
more than 95% of the Members of the Company entitled to vote in pursuance with
the provisions of Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013.

CIN U93000MH2008PLC272209 * Email : info@vikrangroup.com * Tel.: 022-6869 3200
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vi. A Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”),
relating to the Special Business to be transacted at the Meeting is enclosed
herewith.

vii.  Relevant documents referred to in the Notice are open for inspection by the
members at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours except
on holidays. The soft copy of aforesaid documents will be also available for
inspection by members at the Meeting.

viii. =~ Corporate Members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend
the Meeting are requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution
authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

ix. ~ The Members can join the AGM through the VC/OAVM mode 10 minutes before
the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION TO 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT 2013

ITEM NO 4

The Provisions of Section 188(1)(f) of the Companies Act, 2013 governs the related
party’s appointment to any place or place of profit in the Company, or its subsidiary or
associate Company.

Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar, wife of Mr. Rakesh Ashok Markhedkar, Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company holds a place of profit under Section 188(1)(f) and all
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made
thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time
being in force)

Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar, (Head of Human Resource and Administration) contributed
immensely in the growth of the Company and currently holds a place of profit in the
Company and it’s a arm’s length transaction. Further, as the said resolution, will attract
provision of SEBI (LODR) and section 188 (1) (f) of the Companies Act, 2013, i.e. making
payment to a relative beyond %2,50,000/- p.m., the above matter was recommended by
Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and the Board vide their
meeting dated 18t August 2025, for approval of the Members of the Company.,

Mrs Kanchan Markhedkar has M. Sc. in Statistics. Her Key competencies is in business
planning, value generation and creative thinking. Considering her experience, skills and
contributions in the Company, the Board recommends her appointment for the period of
tive (5) years with retrospective effect from 15t April 2025 to 31st March 2030 and further

- a0 8k
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‘ ® VIKRAN ENGINEERING LIMITED
(Formerly Known as VIKRAN ENGINEERING & EXIM PRIVATE LIMITED)

it is now proposed to revise remuneration of Rs 2,89,85,700 (Rupees Two crores Eighty
Nine Lakhs Eighty Five Thousand Seven Hundred only) per annum plus annual
increment and such other perquisite, bonus/ special incentives etc. as may be decided
by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee the Board from time
to time.

The Board of the Directors recommends to pass the said Ordinary Resolution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their respective
relatives are in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
resolution except Mr. Rakesh Ashok Markhedkar, Mr. Nakul Markhedkar and Mr.
Avinash Ashok Markhedkar and their relatives.

ITEM NO 5

The Provisions of Section 188(1)(f) of the Companies Act, 2013 governs the related
party’s appointment to any place or place of profit in the Company, or its subsidiary or
associate Company.

Mr. Vipul Markhedkar, son of Mr. Rakesh Ashok Markhedkar, Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company holds a place of profit under Section 188(1)(f) and all other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in
force)

Mr. Vipul Markhedkar, (Head of Business Development) contributed immensely in the
growth of the Company and currently holds a place of profit in the Company and it’s a
arm’s length transaction. Further, as the said resolution, will attract provision of SEBI
(LODR) and section 188 (1) (f) of the Companies Act, 2013, i.e. making payment to a
relative beyond 2,50,000/- p.m., the above matter was recommended by Nomination &
Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and the Board vide their meeting dated 18th
August 2025, for approval of the Members of the Company.,

Mr. Vipul Markhedkar holding degree in Master in Business Administration. His Key
competencies is strategic partnering, business planning and development, leadership,
strategic sourcing, financial acumen, branding and networking. Considering his
experience, skills and contributions in the Company, the Board recommends his
appointment for the period of five (5) years with retrospective effect from 1st April 2025
to 31st March 2030 and further it is now proposed to revise remuneration of Rs.
1,51,64,667/- ( Rupees One Crores Fifty One Lakhs Sixty Four Thousand Six Hundred
Sixty Seven one only) per annum plus annual increment and such other perquisite,
bonus/ special incentives etc. as may be decided by the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee the Board from time to time.
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‘ ® VIKRAN ENGINEERING LIMITED
(Formerly Known as VIKRAN ENGINEERING & EXIM PRIVATE LIMITED)

The Board of the Directors recommends to pass the said Ordinary Resolution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their respective
relatives are in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
resolution except Mr. Rakesh Ashok Markhedkar, Mr. Nakul Markhedkar and Mr.
Avinash Ashok Markhedkar and their relatives.

ITEM NO 6

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 15
of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, as amended, and other
applicable provisions, if the value of certain related party transactions exceeds the
specified thresholds and even if such transactions are in the ordinary course of business
and holding an office or place of profit on an arm’s length basis, approval of the
Members is required in certain cases, either prior to or by way of ratification.

Further, as per Rule 15 of the said Rules, such transactions require the approval of the
Members by way of an ordinary resolution, if the value of the transaction(s) exceeds the
prescribed limits. Accordingly, the following transactions entered into by the Company
with its related parties during the financial year 2024-25, which exceeded the thresholds
prescribed under the applicable rules, are being placed before the Members for their
ratification and approval:

Sr. Name of the Party Nature of the Transaction The amount
No. of the
Transaction
(Rs. In lakhs)
1. Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar - | Remuneration 264

Wife of Chairman and

Managing Director

2. Mr. Vipul Markhedkar - Son | Remuneration 138
of Chairman and Managing

Director

All the above transactions were undertaken in the ordinary course of business and on an
arm’s length basis. The Audit Committee has granted omnibus approval in its meeting
held on 29t September 2024 for these transactions, and the Board has taken note of the
same.
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‘ ® VIKRAN ENGINEERING LIMITED
(Formerly Known as VIKRAN ENGINEERING & EXIM PRIVATE LIMITED)

As per the provisions of Section 188, related parties are not entitled to vote on the
resolution concerning their related party transaction(s). Accordingly, the related parties,
to the extent of their shareholding interest in the Company, shall abstain from voting on
this resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution set out in the Notice for the approval of the
Members as an Ordinary Resolution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their respective
relatives are in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
resolution except Mr. Rakesh Ashok Markhedkar, Mr. Nakul Markhedkar and Mr.
Avinash Ashok Markhedkar and their relatives.

ITEM NO?7

The Board of Directors, upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved the
appointment of M/s. R.R, Ahirwar & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration
No. 103745), , Cost Accountants as Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records
of the Company for the financial year 2025-2026 on the remuneration payable to them as
per details furnished in item no. 8 of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with Rule 14 (a) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost
Auditors is required to be ratified by the Members of the Company. Accordingly,
consent of the Members is being sought for ratification of the remuneration payable to
the Cost Auditors for the financial year 2025-2026.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, including their
relatives are concerned with or interested in, financially or otherwise, in the resolution as
set out at item no. 8. The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No.
8 for approval by Members.

ITEM NO 8

As per the provisions of Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 9 of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,
every public company having a paid-up share capital of Rs.50 crore or more, or turnover
of Rs.250 crore or more, is required to obtain a Secretarial Audit Report from a Practising
Company Secretary in Form MR-3 and annex it to the Board’s Report.

Further, in the case of companies governed by SEBI regulations, Regulation 24A of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended
from time to time, mandates annual secretarial audits by a practicing company secretary
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‘ ® VIKRAN ENGINEERING LIMITED
(Formerly Known as VIKRAN ENGINEERING & EXIM PRIVATE LIMITED)

and submission of such audit reports within the prescribed timelines.

In view of the above, and based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the
Board of Directors, at its meeting held on 18t" August, 2025 has approved the
appointment of M/s Geeta Canabar & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries
(Proprietor: Ms. Geeta Canabar, Membership No. 8702, COP No. 8330), as the Secretarial
Auditor of the Company for a period of five consecutive financial years, from FY 2025-26
to FY 2029-30, to conduct the Secretarial Audit in accordance with applicable provisions.

Ms. Geeta Canabar is a fellow member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India
(“ICSI”) and also holds a Master’s degree in Commerce and Law degree. Ms. Geeta
Canabar has consented to her appointment as Secretarial Auditor and has confirmed that
she has subjected herself to peer review process of the ICSI and holds a valid certificate
of peer review issued by the ICSI. Further, Me Geeta Canabar has confirmed that she is
eligible for appointment as the Secretarial Auditor and has not incurred any
disqualification specified by the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

The Board also proposes that the said firm may be engaged to provide any additional
secretarial services, certificates, or reports as may be required under applicable laws, on
such terms and conditions (including remuneration) as may be decided by the Board of
Directors or its committee(s) from time to time.

In accordance with the provisions of Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations, the
appointment of Secretarial Auditor is required to be approved by the members of the
Company. Accordingly, the resolution is proposed for approval of the members by way
of an Ordinary Resolution.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, or their relatives are, in any way,
financially or otherwise concerned or interested in the said resolution.

By Order of the Board
ForVikran Engineering Limited
(Formerly known as Vikran Engineering & Exim Limited)

Sd/-

RAKESH ASHOK MARKHEDKAR
Managing Director
DIN: 07009284

Place: Thane
Date: 18th August 2025

Registered & Corporate Office : 401, Odyssey I.T. Park, Road No. 9, Wagle Industrial Estate, Thane, Maharashtra - 400604.
CIN U93000MH2008PLC272209 * Email : info@vikrangroup.com * Tel.: 022-6869 3200

www.vikrangroup.com
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-2025

To,
The Members,
VIKRAN ENGINEERING LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)

Your Director’s have pleasure in presenting their 17th Annual Report on the business and
operations of Vikran Engineering Limited (Formerly Known as Vikran Engineering & Exim
Private Limited) (“The Company”) together with the Audited Financial statements of the
Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & RESULTS:

Financial Results

The Company's performance during the year ended 31st March, 2025 as compared to the
previous financial year, is summarized below:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars For the financial year| For the financial year

ended 31st March, 2025 ended 31st March, 2024
Total Income 92,236 79,144
Less: Expenses 81,217 69,067
Profit before exceptional and extraordinary 11,019 10,077

items and tax
Profit before tax 11,019 10,077
Less: Tax Expenses 3,238 2,592

Exception Income . -

Exception expenditure - -

Profit after Tax 7,781 7,485




2. OPERATIONAL REVIEW AND THE STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS:

The Company has reported Total Revenue of Rs. 92,236 lakhs as compared to Rs. 79,144
lakhs in previous year.

The Company experienced a Profit after Tax of Rs. 7,781 lakhs as compared to Rs. 7,485
lakhs in previous year.

There was tax expense of Rs. 3,238 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2025 as compared
to Rs. 2,592 lakhs in previous year.

Your Director’s are continuously looking for avenues for future growth of the Company.

3. SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE:

A. AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

As on March 31, 2025, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company stood at Rs.
30,00,00,000/ - (Rupees Thirty Crores Only) divided into 30,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Re.
1/- each.

During the period under review, there were changes in the Authorised Share Capital

Structure of the Company which are as follows:

. The Authorised Share Capital of the Company has been sub-divided from Rs. 50,00,000/ -

(Rupees Fifty Lakhs Only) divided into 5,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each to Rs.
50,00,000/ - (Rupees Fifty Lakhs Only) divided into 50,00,000 Equity Shares of Re.1/- each
via Special Resolution passed in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company on

12th August, 2024.

. Further, pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement approved by the National Company Law

Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai bench under sections 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 vide



order dated 14th August, 2024, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company was
increased from Rs. 50,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty Lakhs Only) divided into 50,00,000 Equity
Shares of Re. 1/- each to Rs. 70,50,000/- (Rupees Seventy Lakhs Fifty Thousand Only)
divided into 70,50,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each.

. Further, The Authorised Share Capital of the Company was increased from Rs. 70,50,000
(Rupees Seventy Lakhs Fifty Thousand Only) divided into 70,50,000 Equity Shares of Re.
1/- each to Rs. 30,00,00,000/-(Rupees Thirty Crores Only), divided into 30,00,00,000
Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each via Ordinary Resolution passed in the Extra Ordinary
general Meeting of the Company on 12th August, 2024.

. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

As on March 31, 2025, the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up share capital of the Company
stood at Rs. 18,35,81,130/- (Rupees Eighteen Crores Thirty-Five Lakhs Eighty-One
Thousand One Hundred and Thirty Only) comprising of 18,35,81,130 Equity Shares of
Re.1/- each.

During the Financial Year under review, there were changes in the issued, subscribed and

paid-up share capital of the Company which are as follows:

Sr. Date of Type of No.of Face Premium AmountinRs. Form of
No. Allotment allotment Equity Value consideration
of Equity Shares
Shares (before
split and
Bonus)

1 25t July, Private 1860 10  37,637.32/-Rs.7,00,24,015.20/-Cash
2024 Placement

2 26t July, Private 3320 10  37637.32/- Rs. 12,49,89,104/- Cash
2024 Placement



3 30t July, Private 1,196
2024 Placement

4 02rd August, Private 5,843
2024 Placement

5 03 August, Private 7,177
2024 Placement

6  05% August, Private 1,596
2024 Placement

7 21st August, Private 5,978
2024 Placement

8  22nd August, Private 664
2024 Placement

10

10

10

10

10

10

9 24t August, Pursuant 28,96,780 1

2024 to Scheme
of
Arrangem
ent
approved
by the
Hon'ble
National
Company
Law

Tribunal

(NCLT)

10 30t August, Bonus 17,99,81, 1

2024 Issue 500

37637.32/- Rs. 4,50,26,197/- Cash

37637.32/- Rs. 21,99,73,296 /- Cash

37637.32/- Rs. 27,01,94,822 /- Cash

37637.32/- Rs. 6,00,85,124/- Cash

37637.32/- Rs. 22,50,55,679/- Cash

37637.32/- Rs. 2,49,97,820/- Cash

Nil Rs. 28,96,780/ - Other than
Cash

Nil Rs. 17,99,81,500/- |Other than
Cash



EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME:

During the financial year under review, the Company doesn’t have any Employees Stock Option
Scheme for its employees/ directors and hence no information as per the provisions of Section

62(1) (b) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable rules is furnished.

DIVIDEND:

The Board of Directors have recommended a Dividend of Rs. 0.21/- (Rupees zero point two one
paise Only) per equity share of Re. 1/- (Rupee One Only) each fully paid-up of the Company.
Dividend is subject to approval of members in the ensuing Annual General Meeting and shall be

subject to deduction of income tax at source.

The Dividend recommended is in accordance with the Company’s Dividend Distribution Policy.

The said Policy is available on the Company’s website and can be accessed at

https:/ /www.vikrangroup.com/investors-relation/financials.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION
FUND:

The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as there was no

unclaimed dividend till date.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

Pursuant to Section 71 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 18 of the Companies (Share
Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, the Company has transferred Rs. 5,00,00,000/ - (Rupees Five

Crores Only) to the Debenture Redemption Reserve (DRR) out of the retained earnings.


https://www.vikrangroup.com/investors-relation/financials

8.

MATERIAL EVENTS DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW:

a)

b)

d)

Change in Name of the Company:

The name of the Company has been changed from “Vikran Engineering & Exim
Private Limited” to “Vikran Engineering Private Limited” via Special Resolution

passed in Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 17t June, 2024.

Private Placement of Equity Shares:

During the period under review, the Company has issued and allotted 27,634
Equity Shares at a price of Rs. 37,647.32/ - each having Face value of Rs. 10/- each
aggregating to Rs. 1,04,03,46,057.20/- (Rupees One Hundred Four Crores Three
Lakh Forty-Six Thousand Fifty Seven and Twenty Paise Only) on a Private

Placement Basis.

Kindly Refer table mentioned in point no. 3(B) for the details of allotment.

Conversion of Private Limited Company into Public Limited Company:

During the period under review, the Company was converted from a Private
Limited Company to a Public Limited Company, resulting into name change of
the Company from “Vikran Engineering Private Limited” to “Vikran Engineering

Limited” via Special Resolution dated 12t August, 2024.
Issue of Equity Shares pursuant to approval of Scheme of Arrangement:
In accordance with the scheme of arrangement approved by National Company

Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench order dated 14™ August, 2024, Deb Suppliers &

Traders Private Limited (First Transferor Company), Farista Financial Consultants



f)

Private Limited (Second Transferor Company) with Vikran Engineering Limited
(Transferee Company) (formerly known as Vikran Engineering & Exim Private
Limited), allotted 28,96,780 Equity shares of Re. 1/- each to the members of the

Transferor Companies.

Issue of Bonus Shares:

During the period under review, the Company has issued and allotted Bonus
Equity Shares 17,99,81,500 having face value of Re. 1/- each aggregating to Rs.
17,99,81,500/ - (Rupees Seventeen Crores Ninety Nine Lakhs Eighty One Thousand
and Five Hundred Only) in the proportion of 50 bonus equity shares of Re. 1 /-
each for every 1 equity share of Re. 1/-.

Issue of Debentures on Private Placement basis:
The Company has issued and allotted Secured, Rated, Redeemable, Unlisted,

Non-Convertible Debentures aggregating to Rs. 50,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty

Crores Only) on Private Placement Basis. The details of allotment of Debenture are

as follows:
Sr. Date of Type of  No. of Face Value Amountin Form of
No. Allotment allotment Debentures Rs. consider
ation
1. 23d Private 50 50,00,000/- 25,00,00,000/- Cash
October, Placement
2024
2. 10t% January, Private 50 50,00,000/- 25,00,00,000/- Cash

2025 Placement



g

h)

i)

Initial Public Offer (IPO) of Equity Shares

During the period under review, the Company passed a resolution for issue of
Initial Public Offer (IPO) of Equity Shares up to Rs. 500 crores (“Fresh Issue”) (with
an option to the Company to retain an over-subscription to the extent of 1% of the
net Offer (defined below) size, or such other extent as may be permitted under the
Applicable Laws and an offer for sale of up to such number of Equity Shares
aggregating up to Rs. 50 Crores by existing and eligible shareholders of the
Company (the “Selling Shareholders”).

Subsequently, a resolution was passed for revision in limits of Initial Public Offer
of Equity Shares from Rs. 500 Crores to up to Rs. 1400 crores (“Fresh Issue”) (with
an option to the Company to retain an over-subscription to the extent of 1% of the
net Offer (defined below) size, or such other extent as may be permitted under the

Applicable Laws.

Filing of Draft Red Herring Prospectus:

The Company has filed the Draft Red Herring Prospectus with The Securities and
Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) on 30th September, 2024 with a view to be listed
on National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”) and Bombay Stock
Exchange Limited (“BSE”).

Preparation of Financials as per Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

The financial statements upto the year ended 31st March, 2023 were prepared in
accordance with the accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2021 (as amended) (“previous GAAP’ or ‘erstwhile GAAP’) and

relevant provisions of the Act.



Since the Company is planning for initial public offering (IPO), during the period
under review, the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024 were
prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, other relevant provisions of the Act, the
presentation and disclosures requirement of Division II of Schedule III to the Act

(Ind AS compliant Schedule III).

9. MATERIAL CHANGES BETWEEN THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF
THE BOARD REPORT:

The Company has issued and allotted Secured, Rated, Redeemable, Unlisted, Non-
Convertible Debentures aggregating to Rs. 25,00,00,000 on Private Placement Basis. The

details of allotment of Debenture are as follows:

Sr. = Date of Type of No. of Face Amountin = Form of
No. Allotment allotment Debenture Value Rs. consideration
s
1. | 17t April, = Private 20 50,00,000 = 10,00,00,000 = Cash
2025 Placement /-
2. | 24t April, = Private 30 50,00,000 & 15,00,00,000 Cash
2025 Placement /-

10. SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

During the year under review, following Companies/Body corporates became and/or

ceased to be the subsidiary, joint venture or associate of the Company:



11.

12.

13.

Sr. | Name of the | Subsidiary, Joint Became
No. | Company/Body Venture or Associate
Corporate
1 M/s RCP Engineering Joint Venture January 13, 2025

Except as mention above, please find below the details of existing Joint Venture:
1. Vikran-M/s Emre Ray Enerji Insaat San.Ve Tic. A.S. (“VIKRAN - EREI JV”)
2. Vikran-M/s R & B Infra Project Limited (“VIKRAN - RBIPL JV”)

3. Vikran-Vishnu Prakash R Punglia Limited (“VIKRAN - VPRPL JV”)

DEPOSITS:

Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the

Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, INVESTMENTS AND SECURITIES:

The detail of the Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provision of
Section 186 of Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

(Please refer Note No. 7, 8 of the Financial Statement).

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in sub section
(1) of section 188 entered by the Company during the financial year ended 31st March,

2025 are at arm’s length as mentioned in the financial statements Note No. 42.

Details of contracts/arrangements/ transactions with related party which are required to
be reported in Form No. AOC-2 in terms of Section 134(3) (h) read with Section 188 of the
Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are provided in “Annexure
A” to this Report.



14.

15.

16.

The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is available on the

website of the Company at https:/ /www.vikrangroup.com/investors-

relation/financials.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

During the year Company has spent Rs. 1,19,00,000/ - (Rupees One Crore Nineteen Lakhs
Only) towards CSR activities. The CSR “ Annexure B” is attached herewith.

The CSR Policy is available on the Company’s website and can be accessed at

https:/ /www.vikrangroup.com/investors-relation/financials.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

Your Company recognizes that risk is an integral part of business and is committed to
managing the risks in a proactive and efficient manner. Your Company periodically
assesses risks in the internal and external environment, along with the cost of treating
risks and incorporates risk treatment plans in its strategy, business and operational plans.
At present the Company has not identified any element of risk which may threaten the

existence of the Company.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS:

The Board has adopted policies and procedures for ensuring orderly and efficient conduct
of its business including adherence to the Company’s Policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of Frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness

of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures.


https://www.vikrangroup.com/investors-relation/financials
https://www.vikrangroup.com/investors-relation/financials
https://www.vikrangroup.com/investors-relation/financials

17.

The Company’s internal control system is commensurate with its size, scale and

complexities of its operations. The Board of Directors actively reviews the adequacy and

effectiveness of the internal control system and suggests improvements to strengthen the

same.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. None of the Directors is

disqualified from being appointed as such under the provision of Section 164 of the

Companies Act, 2013.

Composition of Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel as on 31st March, 2025

is as follows:

Sr Name of DIN Designation Date of
No. | Director/KMP Appointment
1. Mr. Rakesh Ashok 07009284 Chairman & 20/11/2015
Markhedkar Managing Director
2. Mr. Avinash Ashok 03089201 Whole Time 02/11/2015
Markhedkar Director
3. | Mr. Nakul 07028044 Whole Time 01/02/2024
Markhedkar Director
4. Ms. Priti Paras Savla 00662996 Independent 24/09/2024
Director
5. Mr. Rakesh Kumar 02166966 Independent 24/09/2024
Sharma Director
6. Mr. Arun Bhagwan 07131173 Independent 24/09/2024
Unhale Director
7. Mr. Ashish Dinesh - Chief Financial 21/08/2023
Bahety Officer
8. | Ms. Kajal Sagar - Company 06/05/2024
Rakholiya Secretary &
Compliance Officer




During the Financial Year under review, following are the changes in the

Composition of Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Ms. Kajal Sagar Rakholiya was appointed as Company Secretary & Compliance
Officer w.e.f. 06" May, 2024.

Mr. Avinash Ashok Markhedkar designation was changed to Whole Time Director
w.e.f 17 June, 2024

Mr. Nakul Markhedkar was regularised as Whole-Time Director w.e.f 17" June, 2024
Ms. Priti Paras Savla was appointed as an Additional Non- Executive Independent
Director w.e.f. 24" September, 2024.

Mr. Rakesh Kumar Sharma was appointed as an Additional Non- Executive
Independent Director w.e.f. 24" September, 2024.

Mr. Arun Bhagwan Unhale was appointed as an Additional Non- Executive
Independent Director w.e.f. 24" September, 2024.

Mr. Rakesh Ashok Markhedkar reappointed as Managing Director w.e.f 24"
September, 2024

Mr. Avinash Ashok Markhedkar reappointed as Whole-Time Director w.e.f 24"
September, 2024

Mr. Nakul Markhedkar reappointed as Whole-Time Director w.e.f 24" September,
2024

Ms. Priti Paras Savla was regularised as an Independent Director w.e.f. 25%
September, 2024.

Mr. Rakesh Kumar Sharma was regularised as an Independent Director w.e.f. 25"
September, 2024.

Mr. Arun Bhagwan Unhale was regularised as an Independent Director w.e.f. 25"

September, 2024.



18. DISCLOSURES RELATED TO BOARD:

a. BOARD MEETINGS:

The Board of Directors met 31 times during the financial year ended on 31st March
2025 in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
there under. The intervening gap between the meetings was within the period as

prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

The maximum gap between any two Board Meetings was less than One Hundred

and Twenty days.

The names of members of the Board, their attendance in the Board Meetings are as

under:

Sr. Name of Directors No. of Meetings | Total Meetings

No. attended Held

1. Mr. Rakesh Ashok 31 31
Markhedkar

2. Mr. Avinash Ashok 31 31
Markhedkar

3. Mr. Nakul Markhedkar 31 31

4. Ms. Priti Paras Savla 4 4

5. Mr. Rakesh Kumar Sharma 4 4

6. Mr. Arun Bhagwan Unhale 4 4

b. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In terms of Section 134(3)(C) of the Companies Act, 2013, in relation to the audited
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2025, the Board

of Directors hereby confirms that:



ii.

iii.

iv.

Vi.

In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards read
with requirements set out under Schedule III to the Act, have been followed and there
are no material departures from the same;
The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and of
the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;
The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a “going concern basis”.
The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the
Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating
effectively; and

The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions

of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The Company has a policy for performance evaluation of the Board, Committees and
other individual Directors (including Independent Directors) which includes criteria

for performance evaluation of Non-Executive Directors and Executive Directors.

The Performance Evaluation Policy is available on the Company’s website and can be

accessed at https:/ /www.vikrangroup.com/investors-relation/financials.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors have submitted the Declaration of Independence, stating
that they continue to fulfil the criteria of independence as required pursuant to section

149 of the Companies Act, 2013.



The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors appointed during the year
possess the requisite integrity, expertise, experience, and proficiency to effectively
discharge their duties and contribute meaningfully to the Company’s governance and

decision-making and fulfil the conditions specified under the Companies Act, 2013.

19. AUDITORS:

@)

(b)

STATUTORY AUDITORS

In the Annual General Meeting for the F.Y 2023-24 held on 26t August, 2024, M/s.
Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN-001076N/N500013) were
re-appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a term of 5
(Five) years from the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of

the Annual General Meeting to be held for the financial year 2028-29.

The Auditors have furnished a certificate of their eligibility for re-appointment under
Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and have indicated their willingness to
continue as Auditors till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the

Company to be held for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2029.

EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATION OR
ADVERSE REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS IN THEIR
REPORT.

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Statutory

Auditors of the Company in their report except as mentioned below:

Please refer para 14(f) of Audit Report for F.Y. 2024-2025 i.e. “The qualification
relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as
stated in paragraph 14(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and
paragraph 14(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit



and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended)”.

(c) INTERNAL AUDITORS
M/s. Shetty & Shetty, Chartered Accountants, (FRN: 140140W), were appointed as

an Internal Auditor for conducting Internal Audit of Company on 10t of May, 2021
for the period of 5 Years i.e. from the FY 2021-22 till the conclusion of FY 2025-26.

(d) SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended
from time-to-time M/s. Geeta Canabar & Associates (M. No. 8702), Company
Secretaries in practice, have been appointed to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the

Company for the Financial Year 2024-25.

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 is annexed
and marked as “Annexure C” to this Report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not

contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer.

20. REPORTING OF FRAUD:

The Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud as specified under Section
143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, no case of Fraud has been reported to the

Management from any other sources.

21. COMMITTEES:

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Company constituted Audit Committee in compliance with the requirements



of the section 177 of Companies Act, 2013.

Composition:

Name of Directors Nature of | Designation in

Directorship Committee

Independent Director Chairperson
Ms. Priti Paras Savla

Independent Director Member
Mr. Rakesh Kumar Sharma

Whole Time Director Member
Mr. Nakul Markhedkar

The attendance of members of the Audit Committee are as under:

Name of Directors No. of Meetings | Total Meetings Held
attended

Ms. Priti Paras Savla 1 1

Mr. Rakesh Kumar Sharma 1 1

Mr. Nakul Markhedkar 1 1

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Company constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee in compliance with

the requirements of the section 178 of Companies Act, 2013.

Composition:
Name of Directors Nature of Directorship Designation in
Committee
Mr. Rakesh Kumar Sharma Independent Director Chairman
Ms. Priti Paras Savla Independent Director Member




Mr. Arun Bhagwan Unhale

Independent Director

Member

The attendance of members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as

under:
Name of Directors No. of Meetings | Total Meetings Held
attended
Mr. Rakesh Kumar Sharma 1 1
Ms. Priti Paras Savla 1 1
Mr. Arun Bhagwan Unhale 1 1

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:

The Board of Directors decided to voluntarily constitute Risk Management Committee in

accordance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Composition:
Name of Directors Nature of Directorship Designation in
Committee
Mr. Nakul Markhedkar Whole Time Director Chairman
Mr. Rakesh Ashok | Chairman and | Member
Markhedkar Managing Director
Mr. Rakesh Kumar Sharma Independent Director Member

During the year under review no Risk Management Committee meeting was held.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:

The Company has reconstituted its Corporate Social Responsibility Committee in

accordance with section 135 of Companies Act, 2013. The Details of reconstituted Corporate

Social Responsibility Committee are given herein below:



Composition:

Name of Directors Nature of Directorship Designation in
Committee

Mr. Avinash Ashok |  Whole Time Director Chairman

Markhedkar

Mr. Arun Bhagwan Unhale Independent Director Member

Mr. Rakesh Ashok | Chairman and | Member

Markhedkar Managing Director

The attendance of members of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee are as

under:
Name of Directors No. of Meetings | Total Meetings Held
attended

Mr. Avinash Ashok | 1 1

Markhedkar

Mr. Rakesh Ashok | 1 1

Markhedkar

Mr. Arun Bhagwan Unhale 1 1

STAKEHOLDER'S RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

The Company formulated Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee pursuant to the provisions

of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Composition:
Name of Directors Nature of Directorship Designation in
Committee
Mr. Arun Bhagwan Unhale Independent Director Chairman
Mr. Rakesh Ashok | Chairman and Managing | Member




Markhedkar

Director

Mr. Nakul Markhedkar

Whole Time Director

Member

The attendance of members of the Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee are as under:

Name of Directors No. of Meetings | Total Meetings Held
attended

Mr. Arun Bhagwan Unhale 1 1

Mr. Nakul Markhedkar 1 1

Mr. Rakesh Ashok 1 1

Markhedkar

CORPORATE AFFAIRS COMMITTEE:

The Company formulated the Corporate Affairs Committee pursuant to provisions of

section 179 and other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

Composition:
Name of Directors Nature of Directorship Designation in
Committee
Mr. Rakesh Ashok | Chairman and | Chairman
Markhedkar Managing Director
Mr. Avinash Ashok | Whole Time Director Member
Markhedkar
Mr. Nakul Markhedkar Whole Time Director Member
The attendance of members of the Corporate Affairs Committee are as under:
Name of Directors No. of Meetings | Total Meetings Held
attended
Mr. Rakesh Ashok 10 10
Markhedkar
Mr. Avinash Ashok 10 10




Markhedkar

Mr. Nakul Markhedkar

10

10

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING COMMITTEE:

The Company has formulated the Initial Public Offering Committee to undertake an

initial public offer of the equity shares of the Company. The Details of Initial Public

Offering Committee are given herein below:

Composition:

Name of Directors Nature of | Designation in
Directorship Committee

Mr. Rakesh Ashok Markhedkar Chairman and | Chairman
Managing Director

Mr. Avinash Ashok Markhedkar | Whole Time Director | Member

Mr. Arun Bhagwan Unhale Independent Member
Director

The attendance of members of the Initial Public Offering Committee are as under:

Name of Directors No. of  Meetings | Total Meetings Held
attended

Mr. Rakesh Ashok 1 1

Markhedkar

Mr. Avinash Ashok 1 1

Markhedkar

Mr. Arun Bhagwan Unhale 1 1

22. VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE-BLOWER POLICY:

Your Company believes in promoting a fair, transparent, ethical and professional work

environment. The Board of Directors of the Company pursuant to the provisions of



23.

24.

Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, has framed “Vigil Mechanism” for Directors and
employees of the Company for reporting the genuine concerns or grievances or cases of

actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct and ethics

policy.

The Whistle-blower Policy is available on the Company’s website and can be accessed

at https:/ /www.vikrangroup.com/investors-relation/financials.

THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION AND
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

In accordance with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 (POSH Act) and the Rules made
thereunder, the Company has in place a policy which mandates no tolerance against
any conduct amounting to sexual harassment of women at workplace. The Company
has constituted Internal Complaints Committee(s) (ICCs) to redress and resolve any

complaints arising under the POSH Act.

Particulars Cases

No. of Sexual Harassment Complaints | Nil

Received

No. of Complaints Disposed of Nil

No. of Cases pending for more than 90 Days | Nil

MATERNITY BENEFITS AS PER MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT, 1961:

In compliance with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 and the Rules
framed thereunder, the Company has implemented a comprehensive Maternity Benefit
Policy. This policy outlines employee entitlements related to maternity leave, salary,
benefits, and other associated provisions and the Company has duly complied with the
same during the period under review. The Company confirms that all eligible women

employees received the required benefits, including paid leave, continued salary and



25.

26.

service, and post-maternity support like nursing breaks and flexible work options.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

The information pertaining to Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, pertaining to the names and other

particulars of employees is available for inspection at the registered office of the

Company during business hours and the Directors Report is being sent to the members

excluding this. Any shareholder interested in obtaining a copy of the same may write to

the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer either at the Registered/ Corporate

Office address or by email to companysecretary@vikrangroup.com.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN

EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

(a) Conservation of Energy

()

the steps taken or impact on

conservation of energy

(i)

the steps taken by the Company
for utilizing alternate sources of

energy

(iii)

the capital investment on energy

conservation equipment

The Company has no activity relating to
conservation of energy, details of which are
required to be furnished in this report as
per the provision of Section 134 (3)(m) of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014. However, the Company is making
every possible effort to conserve the use of
power. No Capital investment was made

during the year.



mailto:companysecretary@vikrangroup.com

(b) Technology Absorption

the efforts made towards

technology absorption

the benefits derived like
product improvement, cost
reduction, product
development or import

substitution

(ii)

in case of imported technology
(imported during the last three
years reckoned from the

beginning of the financial

year)-

(a) the details of technology

imported

(b) the year of import

(c) whether the technology
been fully absorbed

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas
where absorption has not taken

place, and the reasons thereof

the expenditure incurred on

Research and Development

The Company has no activity which

requires technology absorption,
details of which are required to be
furnished in this report as per the
provision of Section 134 (3)(m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
8(3) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014. No Import was made
during the 3 (Three) Financial Year
ended March 31, 2025. Further to
note that, no expenditure was

incurred on Research and

Development.




27.

28.

29.

(c) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

There was no foreign exchange inflow & outflow during the financial year under

review.

ANNUAL RETURN:

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, Annual Return in MGT-7 for the FY 2024-

25 can be accessed at our website - https://www.vikrangroup.com/investors-

relation/financials#3

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN
STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE IF ANY:

No such significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or
Tribunals which impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.
However, an order dated 14t August, 2024, received from National Company Law
Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement between Deb
Suppliers & Traders Private Limited (First Transferor Company), Farista Financial
Consultants Private Limited (Second Transferor Company) with Vikran Engineering
Limited (Transferee Company) (formerly known as Vikran Engineering & Exim Private
Limited) which does not impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in

future.

GENERAL

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following

matters as there were no transactions on these matters during the year under review:


https://www.vikrangroup.com/investors-relation/financials#3
https://www.vikrangroup.com/investors-relation/financials#3

i. There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.
ii. ~ Thereisno proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.
iii. =~ The Company is not required to maintain Cost Records, as it does not fall within
the purview of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.
iv.  There was no instance of one-time settlement with any Bank or Financial

Institution.

30. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has complied with the applicable provisions of Secretarial Standards, i.e. S5-1
and SS-2 relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of Directors’” and ‘General Meetings’,
respectively, issued by the Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

31. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS AND APPRECIATION:

Your Director’s take this opportunity to thank the customers, shareholders, employees,
suppliers, bankers, business partners/associates, financial institutions and Central and

State Governments for their consistent support and encouragement to the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board
VIKRAN ENGINEERING PRIVATE LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)

Sd/- Sd/-
Rakesh Ashok Markhedkar Nakul Markhedkar
Chairman & Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN: 07009284 DIN: 07028044

Place: Thane
Date: 18th August, 2025



Annexure A
Form AOC-2
Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

(Rs in Lakhs)
Name(s) of | Nature of | Duration of | Salientterms of the | Justification for | Date(s) of | Amount Date on which
the related | contracts/arra | the contracts | contracts or | entering into such | approval by | paid as | the special
party and | ngement/tran | / arrangements  or | contracts or | the Board, if | advances, resolution was
nature of | sactions arrangement | transactions arrangements or | any: if any: passed in
relationshi s/transaction | including the | transactions general
p s value, if any: meeting as
required
under first
proviso to
section 188
2. Details of contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:
(Rs in Lakhs)
Name(s) of the | Nature of | Nature of | Duration of | Salienttermsof | Date(s) Amo
related party Relationship contracts/arrangemen | the contracts / | the contracts or | of unt
t/transactions arrangements/ | arrangements approval
transactions or transactions | by  the
including the | Board, if
value, if any: any:
M/s. SEU India | Entities over which | Sub-contractingand Upto 31t | Mutually - 85
Performance Directors/KMP have | other charges March, 2025 Accepted
Excellence LLP significant influence Terms
Wife of Chairman and | Rent Upto 31t | Mutually - 7
Mrs. Kanchan | Managing Director March, 2025 Accepted
Markhedkar Terms
Wife of Chairman and | Remuneration Upto 31t | Mutually - 264
Mrs. Kanchan | Managing Director March, 2025 Accepted
Markhedkar Terms
Son of Chairman and | Remuneration Upto 31t | Mutually - 138
Mr. Vipul | Managing Director March, 2025 Accepted
Markhedkar Terms

For and on behalf of the Board
VIKRAN ENGINEERING PRIVATE LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)

Sd/-

Rakesh Ashok Markhedkar
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 07009284
Place: Thane

Date: 18t August,

2025

Sd/-

Nakul Markhedkar
Whole Time Director

DIN: 07028044




[Annexure -B]

Annual Report on CSR Activities to be Included in the Board's Report for Financial Year
ending 31st March 2025.

1.  Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The Company had framed a CSR policy in compliance with the provision of the
Companies Act, 2013 and covers CSR Philosophy, activities to be undertaken by the
Group, scope and applicable resources, identification and approval process,
implementation and monitoring etc.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

S1. | Name of Director | Designation/ Number of Number of
No. Nature of |meetings of CSR| meetings of
Directorship | Committee held CSR
during the year | Committee
attended
during the year
1. Mr. Avinash Ashok{Chairman & 1 1
Markhedkar Whole Time]
Director
2. Mr. Rakesh AshokManaging 1 1
Markhedkar Director &
Member
3. Mr. Arun BhagwanlIndependent 1 1
Unhale Director &
Member

3.  Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR
projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company:

https;//www.vikrangroup.com/

4.  Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of
sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014, if applicable (attach the report):

Not Applicable as the Company does not have an average CSR Obligation of Rs.10
Crores or more during the immediately 3 preceding financial years.

5.  Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required
for set off for the financial year, if any



Sl. [Financial Year |Amount available for set- |Amount required to be set-
No. off from preceding off for the financial year, if
financial years (in Rs.) any (in Rs)
1 2023-24 81.53/- Not Applicable
2 2022-23 471.63/- Not Applicable
3 2021-22 2,936.01/- Not Applicable
Total 3,489.63/- Not Applicable

6.  Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 59,28,39,576/-

(@) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs.
1,18,56,792/-

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years: Not Applicable

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Not Applicable

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Rs. 1,18,56,792/-

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total A t
SO acmonn Total Amount transferred to |Amount transferred to any fund
pent for the

Financial Year Unspent CSR Account as per [specified under Schedule VII as
(in Rs.) ) section 135(6). per second proviso to section

) 135(5).
2024-25 Amount. |Date of transfer.] Name of [Amount.| Date of
the Fund transfer.

Rs.1,19,00,000 /- Not Applicable

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

m| @ G) @ ©) (6) @) ®) ©) (10) 1)
Sl. [Name of|Item from | Local area | Location of the| Project | Amount | Amount | Amount Mode of Mode of
No.| the ([the listof | (Yes/No). project. duration. | allocated | spentin | transferred | Implementation - | Implementation -
Project. | activities for the the to Unspent | Direct (Yes/No). Through
in project (in| current CSR Implementing
Schedule Rs.). financial | Account for Agency
VII to the Year (in | the project
Act. State. | District. Rs.). as per Name CSR
Section Registration
135(6) (in number.
Rs.).

2. Not Applicable

Toul | | | | | | [




(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

o @ G | @ 5) (6) (™) ®)
SL.[ Name | Item |[Local| Location of the project. | Amount Mode of Mode of
No. of the |from the|area spent for [implementation|] implementation -
Project| list of |(Yes/ the - Direct Through implementing
activities| No). project (in|  (Yes/No). agency.
in Rs.).
schedule State. District. Name CSR
VII to registration
the Act. number.
1. | Social (if) Yes | Maharashtra| Mumbai | 26,00,000 No Jeevan Jyoti
Welfare] EducationallCSR00068384
Project Society
2. | Social (if) No | West Bangal | Kolkata | 93,00,000 No Build a
(Welfare| Class ICSR00032133|
Project Initiative
Total 1,19,00,000]

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Not Applicable
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 1,19,00,000/-

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any:

SIL. Particular Amount (in Rs.)

No.

(i) [Two percent of average net profit of the Rs. 1,18,56,792/-
company as per section 135(5)

(ii) [Total amount spent for the Financial Year Rs. 1,19,00,000/-

(iii) [Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)- Rs. 43,208/-
]

(iv) [Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or --
[programmes or activities of the previous
financial years, if any

(v) |Amount available for set off in succeeding Rs. 43,208/-
financial years [(iii)-(iv)]




9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sl. | Preceding | Amount Amount | Amount transferred to | Amount
No. | Financial |transferred [spentinthe| any fund specified [remaining
Year. to Unspent | reporting | under Schedule VII as {to be spent

CSR Financial [per section 135(6), if any. in
Account Year (in Name |Amount! Date of su.cceed.mg
under Rs.). . financial
. of the | (in Rs). transfer. .
section 135 Fund years. (in
(6) (in Rs.) Rs.)
Not Applicable

Total

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding
financial year(s):

@ @ ®G) @ ©) (6) Y ©®) ©
Sl. No. | Project| Name | Financial | Project | Total |Amount|Cumulative| Status of
ID. | ofthe | Yearin |duration|amount [spenton| amount |the project
Project.| which the allocated| the [spent at the -
project was for the | project | end of |Completed
commenced. project | inthe | reporting |/Ongoing.

(in Rs.). reporting| Financial

Financial| Year. (in

Year (in Rs.)
Rs).

Not Applicable

Toal | | | | | |

In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset
so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: Not Applicable

(asset-wise details).
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such
capital asset is registered, their address etc.



(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete

address and location of the capital asset).

11. Specity the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average
net profit as per section 135(5): Not Applicable

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
VIKRAN ENGINEERING LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)

Sd/- Sd/-

Rakesh Ashok Markhedkar Avinash Ashok Markhedkar

Chairman & Managing Director Chairman of CSR Committee & Whole Time Director
DIN: 07009284 DIN: 03089201

Place: Thane
Date:18t August 2025



Annexure - C (to the Director’s Report)
Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31T MARCH, 2025
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
VIKRAN ENGINEERING LIMITED
(Formerly Known as Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)
401, Odyssey IT Park, Road No. 9,
Industrial Wagle Estate,
Thane-400604

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by VIKRAN ENGINEERING LIMITED
(Formerly Known as Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited) (herein after called “the
Company”) having CIN U93000MH2008PLC272209. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
tiled and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of Secretarial
Audit, [ hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 according to the
provisions of:

i.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

ii. ~ The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder; (not applicable to the Company during the period under review except for
proposed application for issue of equity shares and proposed listing thereof on stock
exchange/s through IPO for which verification is done by Merchant Bankers and Legal
Aduvisers to IPO)

iii. = The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;



iv.

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (“FEMA”) and the rules and regulations
made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (not applicable to the Company
during the period under review)

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- (Following sub-clauses (a) to (h) are
not applicable to the Company during the period under review as Company is an
Unlisted Public Company except for proposed application for issue of equity shares
and proposed listing thereof on stock exchange/s through IPO for which verification
is done by Merchant Bankers and Legal Advisers to IPO)

a.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and amendments from time to time;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits
and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting
of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 and

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

1.

2.

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India
(ICsI);
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; (Not applicable to the Company
during the period under review except for proposed application for issue of



equity shares and proposed listing thereof on stock exchange/s through IPO
for which verification is done by Merchant Bankers and Legal Advisers to
IPO)

I further report that the Company has, in my opinion, complied with the provisions of other
Laws applicable to the Company namely:

The Electricity Act, 2003

The Indian Electricity Rules, 1956

Employees State Insurance Act, 1948

Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

Sexual Harassment of Women at work place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act 2013.

The Maternity Benefits Act, 1961

All other Labour, Employee and Industrial Laws to the Extent applicable to the
Company.

In case of Direct and Indirect Tax Laws like Income Tax Act, 1961, Goods and
Services Tax Law, Excise & Custom Laws, I have relied on the Reports given by the
Statutory Auditors of the Company.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

I further report that: -

1.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Director, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors and the
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors took place during the period
under review and were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent as per the applicable provisions. Further, where
the notice, agenda and notes to agenda were given at a shorter period of time for
meetings schedule to transact the urgent business, the requirement of the secretarial
standards were complied with and presence of atleast one Independent Director was
ensured and a system exists for seeking and obtaining

further information and clarification on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting



3. All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were carried out
unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or
Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that, during the period under review the Company has taken following actions
and entered into following events having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in
pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc;

1. Change in the Name of the Company and Conversion into Public Company

During the period under review, the name of the Company was changed from “Vikran
Engineering & Exim Private Limited” to “Vikran Engineering Private Limited”.
Subsequently, the Company was converted into Public Company from “Vikran
Engineering Private Limited” to “Vikran Engineering Limited”.

2. Change in Authorised Share Capital

During the period under review, there were changes in the Authorised Share Capital
Structure of the Company which are as follows:

4. The Authorised Share Capital of the Company has been sub-divided from Rs. 50,00,000/-
(Rupees Fifty Lakhs Only) divided into 5,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each to Rs.
50,00,000/ - (Rupees Fifty Lakhs Only) divided into 50,00,000 Equity Shares of Re.1/- each
via Special Resolution passed in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company on
12t August, 2024.

5. Pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement approved by the National Company Law Tribunal
(NCLT), Mumbai Bench under Section 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 vide order
dated 14t August, 2024, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company was increased
from Rs. 50,00,000/ -(Rupees Fifty Lakhs Only) divided into 50,00,000 Equity Shares of Re.
1/- each to Rs. 70,50,000/- (Rupees Seventy Lakhs Fifty Thousand Only) divided into
70,50,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each.

6. The Authorised Share Capital of the Company was increased from Rs. 70,50,000 (Rupees
Seventy Lakhs Fifty Thousand Only) divided into 70,50,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each
to Rs. 30,00,00,000/ -(Rupees Thirty Crores Only), divided into 30,00,00,000 Equity Shares
of Re. 1/- each via Ordinary Resolution passed in Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the
Company on 12th August, 2024.

3. Change in the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Share Capital of the Company



During the period under review, there were changes in the issued, subscribed and paid-
up share capital of the Company which are as follows:

Sr. |Date of Type of No.of |Face |Premium |Amountin Rs. Form of
No. |Allotment of [allotment |[Equity ([Value consideration
Equity Shares
Shares
1 25t July, 2024|Private 1860 10 37,637.32/- [Rs.7,00,24,015.20/- |Cash
Placement
2 [26th July, 2024 |Private 3320 10 37637.32/- |Rs.12,49,89,104/- |Cash
Placement
3 [30th July, 2024 |Private 1,196 10 37637.32/- [Rs. 4,50,26,197/- Cash
Placement
4 |02nd August, |Private 5,843 10 37637.32/- [Rs. 21,99,73,296/- |Cash
2024 Placement
5 |03 August, |Private 7,177 10 37637.32/- [Rs.27,01,94,822/- |Cash
2024 Placement
6 |05t August, |Private 1,596 10 37637.32/- [Rs. 6,00,85,124/- Cash
2024 Placement
7 21t August, [Private 5,978 10 37637.32/- [Rs. 22,50,55,679/- |Cash
2024 Placement
8  [22nd August, |Private 664 10 37637.32/- [Rs.2,49,97,820/ - Cash
2024 Placement
9  [24% August, [Pursuant to[28,96,780 1 Nil Rs. 28,96,780/ - Other than
2024 Scheme of Cash
Arrangeme
nt approved
by the
Hon'ble
National
Company
Law
Tribunal
(NCLT)
10 (30t August, [Bonus Issue (17,99,81,5 |1 Nil Rs. 17,99,81,500/- |Other than
2024 00 Cash




6.

Adoption of new set of Memorandum of Association (MOA) and Articles of
Association (AOA) of the Company

In the Annual General Meeting held on 26t August, 2024, the Company adopted new set
of Memorandum of Association (MOA) and Articles of Association (AOA) of the
Company and subsequently adopted new Articles of Association of the Company in
compliance with the listing requirements of the stock exchanges.

Issue of Debentures on Private Placement basis:
During the period under review, the Company has issued and allotted Secured, Rated,

Redeemable, Unlisted, Non-Convertible Debentures aggregating to Rs. 50,00,00,000/
(Rupees Fifty Crores Only) on Private Placement Basis as detailed herein below;

Sr. |Date of Type of |No. of Face Value |Amountin |Form of
No. |Allotment |allotment [Debentures Rs. consider
ation

1. [23d Private 50 50,00,000/- [25,00,00,000/-|Cash
October, Placement
2024

2. [10th January, [Private 50 50,00,000/- [25,00,00,000/-|Cash
2025 Placement

Change in Composition of Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

During the period under review, the following are the changes in the Composition of
Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Ms. Kajal Sagar Rakholiya was appointed as Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

w.e.f. 06t May, 2024.

Mr. Avinash Ashok Markhedkar designation was changed to Whole Time Director w.e.f
17t June, 2024

Mr. Nakul Markhedkar was regularised as Whole-Time Director w.e.f 17t June, 2024.
Ms. Priti Paras Savla was appointed as an Additional Non- Executive Independent
Director w.e.f. 24th September, 2024.

Mr. Rakesh Kumar Sharma was appointed as an Additional Non- Executive
Independent Director w.e.f. 24th September, 2024.

Mr. Arun Bhagwan Unhale was appointed as an Additional Non- Executive
Independent Director w.e.f. 24th September, 2024.
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Mr. Rakesh Ashok Markhedkar reappointed as Managing Director w.e.f 24th September,
2024.

Mr. Avinash Ashok Markhedkar reappointed as Whole-Time Director w.e.f 24th
September, 2024

Mr. Nakul Markhedkar reappointed as Whole-Time Director w.e.f 24th September, 2024
Ms. Priti Paras Savla was regularised as an Independent Director w.e.f. 25t September,
2024.

Mr. Rakesh Kumar Sharma was regularised as an Independent Director w.e.f. 25t
September, 2024.

Mr. Arun Bhagwan Unhale was regularised as an Independent Director w.e.f. 25t
September, 2024.

Constitution of Committee

During the period under review, the below Committees were formed and constituted in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2013 and SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

¢ Audit Committee

¢ Nomination And Remuneration Committee

¢ Risk Management Committee (voluntarily constituted)

e Stakeholder's Relationship Committee
e Corporate Affairs Committee
e Initial Public Offering Committee

Related Party Transaction- Holding Place of Profit

Mr. Vipul Markhedkar, son of Mr. Rakesh Ashok Markhedkar, Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company and Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar, wife of Mr. Rakesh Ashok
Markhedkar, Chairman and Managing Director of the Company holds a place of profit
under Section 188(1)(f) and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof, for the time being in force), on an arm’s length basis and in the
ordinary course of business. However, as the transaction limit exceeds the thresholds
prescribed under the applicable rules, an ordinary resolution is required to be placed
before the Members of the Company for their ratification and approval.

Initial Public Offer (IPO) of Equity Shares

During the period under review, the Company passed a resolution for issue of Initial
Public Offer (IPO) of Equity Shares up to Rs. 500 crores (“Fresh Issue”) (with an option to
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the Company to retain an over-subscription to the extent of 1% of the net Offer (defined
below) size, or such other extent as may be permitted under the Applicable Laws and an
offer for sale of up to such number of Equity Shares aggregating up to Rs. 50 Crores by
existing and eligible shareholders of the Company (the “Selling Shareholders”).

Subsequently, a resolution was passed for revision in limits of Initial Public Offer of
Equity Shares from Rs. 500 Crores to up to Rs. 1400 crores (“Fresh Issue”) (with an option
to the Company to retain an over-subscription to the extent of 1% of the net Offer (defined
below) size, or such other extent as may be permitted under the Applicable Laws.

Other Events having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs

During the period under review the Company has;

filed the Draft Red Herring Prospectus with The Securities and Exchange Board
of India (“SEBI”) on 30t September, 2024 with a view to be listed on National
Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”) and Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
(“BSE”).

prepared the Financials as per Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) on account
of issue of Initial Public Offering (IPO)

adopted various policies to align with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

spent Rs. 1,19,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore Nineteen Lakhs Only) towards CSR
activities.

passed resolution for fixing the term of reference for the appointment of Mr.
Rakesh Ashok Markhedkar as Chairman and Managing Director of the Company
declared the final dividend of Rs. 10.50/- per Equity Shares of Face Value of Rs.
10/ - each for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024.

For Geeta Canabar& Associates
Company Secretaries

UIN: S2009MH114800

PR No: 2569/2022

Sd/-
Geeta Canabar
Place: Mumbai Proprietor
Date: 18t August, 2025 CP No. 8330
FCS No. 8702

UDIN: F008702G001021571

Note: This report is to be read with my letter which is annexed as ’/ANNEXURE A’ and forms

an integral part of this report.



To,

ANNEXURE A

The Members,

VIKRAN ENGINEERING LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)
401, Odyssey IT Park, Road No. 9,

Industrial Wagle Estate,

Thane, 400604

My report is to be read along with this letter:

)

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on our audit.

I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in the
secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a
reasonable basis for my opinion.

I have relied on report of Statutory Auditors, Tax auditors and Cost Auditors for
compliances of the applicable Financial Laws including Direct and Indirect Tax Laws,
Accounting Standards, the correctness and appropriateness of Financial Records, Cost
Records and Books of Accounts of the Company since the same have been subject to
review by respective Auditors and other designated professionals.

Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of Laws, Rules and Regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable Laws, Rules,
Regulations, Standards is the responsibility of the Management. My examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.



7) The audit was conducted based on the verification of the Company’s books, papers,
minutes books, forms and returns filed, documents and other records furnished by
them or obtained from the Company electronically and also the information provided
by the Company and its officers by audio and/or visual means.

For Geeta Canabar& Associates
Company Secretaries

UIN: S2009MH114800

PR No: 2569/2022

Sd/-
Geeta Canabar

Place: Mumbai Proprietor
Date: 18t August, 2025 CP No. 8330
FCS No. 8702

UDIN: F008702G001021571
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T +91 22 6626 2699
F +91 22 6626 2601

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran
Engineering Private Limited) (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
material accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS’) specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025,
and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI') together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Chartered Accountants Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is registered
) with limited liability with identification
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Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Emphasis of Matter — Recoverability of Trade Receivables

. We draw attention to Note 14.1 to the accompanying financial statements, which describe an uncertainty to
the outcome of an ongoing litigation with a customer on recoverability of balance amounting to INR 2,929
lakhs due from such customer, which is currently pending in the Commercial Court, Jaipur. The management
based on their internal evaluation and legal advice as obtained, is of the view that the aforesaid amount
receivable is good and recoverable and no liability is likely to arise on the aforesaid matter, and accordingly,
no adjustments have been made to the financial statements in this respect. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Board of Director's Report, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The Board of Director's Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of Directors. The
Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Chartered Accountants Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is registered
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Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern; and

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we
report, to the extent applicable, that:
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Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

a)

b)

g)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books except for the matter stated in paragraph 14(h)(vi) below
on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director
in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as
stated in paragraph 14(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 14(h)(vi)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company as on 31 March 2025 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company, as detailed in Note 14.1 and Note 41 to the accompanying financial statements, has
disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial position as at 31 March 2025;

i. The Company, as detailed in Note 25.1 to the accompanying financial statements, has made
provision as at 31 March 2025, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts,

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025;

iv.a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
Note 54 to the accompanying financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

iv.b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
Note 53 to the accompanying financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the
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Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

iv.c. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the management
representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

V. The final dividend paid by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025 in respect of such
dividend declared for the previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it
applies to payment of dividend.

Vi, As stated in Note 56 to the accompanying financial statements and based on our examination which
included test checks, the Company, in respect of financial year commencing on 01 April 2024, has
used an accounting software which is operated by a third-party software service provider for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail facility and the same
has been operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software at the
application level. In absence of any information on existence of audit trail (edit log) facility for any
direct data changes made at the database level in the ‘Independent Service Auditor's Assurance
Report on the Description of Controls, their Design and Operating Effectiveness’ (‘Type 2 report’
issued in accordance with ISAE 3402, Assurance Reports on Controls at a Service Organization),
we are unable to comment on whether audit trail feature of the said software was enabled and
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions or whether there were any instances of
audit trail feature being tampered with at the database level. The audit trail has been preserved at
the application level by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention. Further,
due to absence of information in the Type 2 report, we are unable to comment on preservation of
audit trail at the database level.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registratipn No.: 001076N/N500013

Rakesh R. Agarwal
Partner
Membership No.: 109632

UDIN: 25109632BMLCUG1133

Place: Mumbai
Date: 09 June 2025
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Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure A referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members
of Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited) on the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2025

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report
that;

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment, investment property and relevant details
of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The property, plant and equipment, investment property and relevant details of right-of-use assets
have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of physical verification programme
adopted by the Company, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its assets.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties including investment properties held by the
Company (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are
duly executed in favor of the lessee), as disclosed in Notes 4A and 4B to the accompanying
financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has adopted cost model for its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-
use assets) and intangible assets. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended) and rules
made thereunder.

(ii) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during
the year, except for goods-in-transit. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the
aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed as compared to book records. In respect of
goods-in-transit, these have been confirmed from corresponding receipt and dispatch inventory

records.
(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

(b) As disclosed in Note 20 to the accompanying financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned a
working capital limit in excess of INR 500 lakhs by banks and financial institutions based on the security of
current assets. The quarterly returns/ statements, in respect of the working capital limits have been filed by
the Company with such banks and financial institutions and such returns/ statements are in agreement with
the books of account of the Company for the respective periods which were not subjected to audit/review,
except for the following:

(INR in lakhs)

Name of the
bank

Working
capital
limits
sanctioned

Nature of
current
assets
held as
security

Quarter
ended

Particulars of
securities
provided

Amount
disclosed
as per
return

Amount
as per
books of
account

Difference

Consortium

14,500

All the

June 2024

Inventories

5,348

5,620

(172)

of banks/
financial
institutions

current
assets of
the
Company

Trade
receivables
(including
contract
assets net of
contract
liabilities)
Inventories
Trade
receivables
(including
contract
assets net of
contract
liabilities)
Inventories
Trade
receivables
(including
contract
assets net of
contract
liabilities)
Inventories
Trade
receivables
(including
contract
assets net of
contract
liabilities)

65,502 65,473 29

September
2024

6,450
68,240

6,449 1
68,240 -

6,211
78,943

6,033
83,586

178
(4,643)

December
2024

March 2025 4678

105,591

5,994
107,461

(1,316)
(1,870)

(iii) (a) The Company has not provided any guarantee or any advances in the nature of loans or given any
security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the
year. The Company has made investment in mutual funds scheme during the year. Further, the
Company has granted loan to one (1) related party during the year, as per details given below:

Loans
(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars

Aggregate amount granted during the year:

- Others 189
Balance outstanding (including interest accrued) as at balance
sheet date in respect of above case

- Others 203
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b)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)(a)

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the investments
made and terms and conditions of the grant of the loan provided are, prima facie, not prejudicial
to the interest of the Company.

In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment
of interest has been stipulated wherein the principal and interest amounts are repayable on
demand and since the repayment of such amounts has not been demanded, in our opinion, the
repayment of principal and interest are regular.

There is no overdue amount in respect of loans granted to such party.
The Company has not granted any loan which, in view of our comments in para (c) above, has
fallen due during the year. Further, no fresh loans were granted to any party to settle the overdue

loans.

The Company has granted loans which are repayable on demand, as per details below:

Particulars Related party
(INR in lakhs)

QOutstanding loan (including interest accrued thereon) as at
31 March 2025:
- Repayable on demand 203

Percentage of loans to the total loan 100 %

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of loan granted and investments made, as
applicable. Further, the Company has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185 and
section 186 of the Act in respect of guarantees and security provided by it.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be deposits
within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s services. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities by the Company, though there have been slight delays
in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at
the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred in

(viii)

sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any
dispute except for the following:

Name of the Nature of Gross Amount paid | Period to which | Forum where dispute is
statute dues Amount | under Protest | the amount pending
(INR in (INR in lakhs) | relates
lakhs)
The Income tax | Income Tax 397 78 AY 2016-17 Income  tax  Appellate
Act, 1961 Tribunal
3 0* AY 2017-18 Commissioner of Income
tax (Appeals)
6 Nil AY 2018-19 Assistant Commissioner of
Income tax
Goods & Service | Goods and 5,362 800 FY 2017-18 Commissioner  (Appeals),
Tax Act, 2017 Service Tax Central Goods and Service
Tax & Central Excise,
Thane
464 61 FY 2018-19 to Commissioner (Appeals),
FY 2020-21 Central Goods and Service
Tax & Central Excise,
Indore
166 15 FY 2019-20 & Joint Commissioner
FY 2020-21 (Appeals), Central Goods
and Service Tax & Central
Excise, Patha

* Absolute amount less than INR 50,000.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43
of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in

repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received from the

management of the Company and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company
has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by
way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short term
basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures [also refer note 2.1.(x)]. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and
clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company. 5@,‘;5,5;
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Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

(b) As disclosed in Note 18(f) to the accompanying financial statements, during the year, the Company has

made private placement of equity shares. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the applicable requirements of section 42 and
section 62 of the Act and the rules framed thereunder with respect to the same. Further, the amounts
so raised have been utilised by the Company for the purposes for which these funds were raised.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud

by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered
by our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by

(c)

the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act has been
filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the
management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during
the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly,

(xii)

reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered into
by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where
applicable. Further, the details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements, as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of
the Act.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an internal

audit system which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business as required under the
provisions of section 138 of the Act.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the period

(xv)

under audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section 192 of the Act
are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (@) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-|A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of the

Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does
not have any Core Investment Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the immediately

preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under

clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

NTED ApcOVE
Chartered Accountants Q?;‘QHA_(L-(E ~=" Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is registered
with limited liability with identification
Offices in Ahmedabad, Bengaluru, Chandigarh, Chennal, Dehradun, Gea, Gurugram, Hyderabad, Indore, number AAC-20B5 and has ils regislered
Kochi, Kolkata, Mumbai, New Delhi, Noida and Pune office at L-41, Connaught Circus, Outer

Circle, New Delhi, 110001, India



Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
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(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
in the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) As stated in Note 43 to the accompanying financial statements and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company does not have any unspent amounts towards Corporate Social
Responsibility in respect of any ongoing or other than ongoing project as at the end of the financial year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under
this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registrafioan No.: 001076N/N500013

Rakesh R.Agarwal
Partner
Membership No.: 109632

UDIN: 25109632BMLCUG1133

Place: Mumbai
Date: 09 June 2025
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Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Annexure B referred to in Paragraph 14(g) to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Annexure B

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran
Engineering Private Limited) (the Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025, we have audited the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (‘Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI’). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence
to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the
ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Annexure B referred to in Paragraph 14(g) to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Rakesh RT Agarwal
Partner
Membership No. 109632

UDIN: 25109632BMLCUG1133

Place: Mumbai
Date: 09 June 2025
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Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limlted)

Balance Sheal as al 31 March 2025
(Al amounts In INR lakhs, unless otherwise slaled)

Parliculars Notes As at As al
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Assats
Non-currenl assels
a) Praperly, plant and equipment 4A 904 864
b) Invesiment properlies 4B 207 207
¢} Intangible assels 5 20 23
d) Right-of-use assels 6 150 95
e) Financlal assels
1) Olher financlal assels 9 2,069 2,567
1) Deferred lax assels (nel) 10 1,624 876
g) Non currenl lax assels (nel) 11 105 3os
h) Other non-current assels 12 1,190 1,306
Total non-current assels 6,249 6,326
Current assels
a) Invenlories 13 5,994 5,073
b) Financial assels
1) Investments 7 113 90
i) Trade receivables 14 63,432 46,390
fiiy Cash and cash equivalents 15 250 8
iv) Bank balances olher lhan above 16 6,457 4,987
v) Loans 8 203 -
vi) Other financial assels 9 1,183 n
c) Conlract assels 17 46,637 28,916
d) Other currenl assels 12 4,980 3,879
Tolal current assels 1,29,219 89,654
Total assets 1,35,468 95,980
Equily and Liabllitles
Equity
a) Equily share capilal 18 1,836 33
b) Other equity 19 44,951 29,096
Total equily 46,787 29,129
Liabllitles
Non-current liabilities
a) Financlal liabllitles
i) Borrowings 20 3,192 1,070
ii) Lease liabllilies 21 a0 38
b) Provisions 25 359 281
Total non-current llabilities 3,631 1,389
Current llabllities
a) Financlal llabllilles
1) Borrowings 20 24,102 17,269
i) Lease liabililles 21 72 36
ii) Trade payables .
- Dues of micro and small enterprises 2 9,181 4,826
- Dues of lrade payables olher than micro and small enlerprises 38,581 24,866
iv) Other financlal fabililies 23 1,709 408
b) Other current liabilities 24 7.068 15,206
¢) Provisions 25 738 1,059
d) Currenl 1ax liabililies (nel} 26 3,599 1,791
Total current liabllilies 85,050 65,462
Total liabilities 88,681 66,851
Total equity and liabilities 1,35,468 95,980

The accompanying notes form an inlegral parl of these financial slalements.

This is the Balance Sheel referred lo in our report of even date

For Walker Chandlok & Co LLP

bar: 001076N / NS00013

Parlnar
Membership No. : 109632

Place: Mumbal
Date: 09 June 2025

For and on behall of the Board of Directors
Vikran Engineering Limiled

=

Rakesh Markhedkar
Chairman & Managing Direclor
DIN - 07009284

Place: Thane

Data: 09 June 2025

Ashish Bahety
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Thane

Date: 09 June 2025

Avinash Markhedkar
Director

DIN : 03089201
Place: Thane

Date: 09 June 2025

Kajal Rakhaliya
Company Secrelary
Place: Thane

Date: 09 June 2025




Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise slated)

Notes

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 ' 31 March 2024
Incoma
Revenue from operalions 27 91,605 76,595
Other Income 28 651 549
Total Income . 92,236 79,144
Cosl of malerials consumed 29 48,368 38,496
Projecl related expense 30 16,042 16,777
Employee benefils expense N 6,763 5,896
Finance cosls 32 5,358 3,397
Deprecialion and amoriisalion expense 33 297 405
Olher expenses 3 4,389 4,096
Total expenses 81,217 69,067
Profit before tax 11,019 10,077
Tax expense [ (credit)
Current lax 36 3,753 2,876
Tax perlaining lo earlier years 36 78 -
Deferred tax 10 (593) (204)
3,238 2,592
Profit for the year (a) 7,781 7,485
Other comprehensive Income / (loss)
llems thal will nol be reclassified lo profit or loss:
Remeasuremenl of post employment benefil obligalions (116) (28)
Income-tax relaling lo ilems that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss 10 29 7
Total other comprehensive Income/ (loss) for the year (net of tax) (b) (87) (21)
Total comprehensive Income for the year (a+h) 7,694 7,464
Earnings per eqully share (Face value of INR 1 each) a7
Basic earnings per share (In INR) 4,35 4,92
Diluted earnings per share (in INR) 4.35 4.92

The accompanying noles farm an integral part of these financial statements.
This Is the Statement of Profil and Loss referred to In our reporl of even date

Rakesh R. &
Partner
Membership No. : 109632
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Date: 09 June 2025

}

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Vikran Engineering Limited

—y

Rakesh Markhedkar
Chalrman & Managing Direclor
DIN : 07009264

Place: Thane

Dale: 09 June 2025

n

Ashish Bahety

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Thane

Dale: 09 June 2025

Avinash Mal
Director

DIN : 03089201
Place: Thane
Date: 09 June 2025

Kajal Rakholiya
Company Secrelary
Place: Thane

Date: 09 June 2025




Vikran Englneoring Limited (formarly, Vikran Engineoring Private Limited)
Slaloment of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Allamounts In INR lakhs, unless othenwise slated)

Pariculars Holes Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 11,019 10,077
Adjustmants for:
Bafances witten offf (vaillen back) (nel) 28 (127) (465)
Depraclation and amorlisation expense 33 207 405
Financa cosls on b ings (Including other b ing cosls) and leases 32 4,713 3,007
Interesl altibutable towards advance incoma lax 32 387 199
Interest Income 28 (514) (329)
Meal galn on sale/ change In falr value of mulual und invesiments 28 {7) (10)
Galn on sale of property, plant and equipment (nel) 28 0 -
Invanlories wrillen dovm 13 87 55
Allowance for expecled credit loss on lrada rocaivables 3 655 517
Less allowance on conlracl assels 3 47 -
Oporaling profil belore working capilal changes 16,557 13,456
Changos In warking caplial:
(Increase)decroase in invenlories 13 (1,008) (1,563)
(Increase)decransa In rade receivables 34 (17,697)] (9,917)
(Increase)decrease In conlracl assels 1 (17,767), (8.452)
(Increase)decraase n olher assels 2412 (1,837) (2.471)
I H{di ) in lrade payabl 22 18,197 B42
Increase/(decreasa) in other liabiliies 24 {6,847) 4,880
Increase/(decrease) In provisions 25 (243) {§1§j1
Cash generatod from/ (used In) operations (10,645) (4,738)
Incoma laxes pald (netl) 36(c) {2,234) (1,910)
Tax assels acquired p lo scheme of ion (Refer nole 55) 55 (28) -
Net cash used In operaling activities - [A} (12,907) (6,648)
B, CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Paymenl for purchase of praperly, planl and equipmenl and inlangible assels (including capital 4A, 4B &5 (267) (205)
advances and payable for capllal goods)
Loan given during lhe year 8 (189) -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 4A, 4B &5 1
Invesimentin mulual funds 7 (151 -
Malurity/{inccease) In fixed deposils (nol considered as cash and cash equivalent) 16 (971) (1.718)|
Interast received 28 514 329
Nel cash used In Investing activities - (8] (927) {1,584)|
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of equily shares (including securilies premium and nel off expenses direclly 18 10,274 8,150
allribulable lo issue of equily sharas)
Prncipal paid on lease liabilities 21 (77)] (95)
Interes! pald on lease liabilities 21 (11)] (9)
Proceeds from lang lerm borrawings 20 5,120 348
Repaymanl of lang lerm borrovings 20 (908) (1,935),
Procaeds from shorl term borrowings 20 6,577 5,794
Repay of short term b ing 20 (1,834)) (625),
Dividend pald 45 (378) (392)
Finance costs on borrowings paid 32 (4,702} (2,998)]
Net eash generated from financing aclivitles - [C] 14,061 B.238
Mol {docreasa)f Increase In cash and cash oquivalenis - [A+B+C) 227 ()
Cash and cash equivalenls al lha beginning of the year 8 12
Cash and cash equivalents acquired pursuant lo scheme of amalgamalion {Refer nole 55) 55 15 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the yoar (Refor note 15) 15 250 8
Mon-cash financing acllvily : Converslon of borrowings Into equity 19 - 794
Non-cash linancing aclivily : Issue of bonus shares 18 1,800 25
Hon-cash Invesling aclivily : Acquisilion of right-ol-use assels 6 . 176 -
Non-cash ing acllvily : Deletion of right-of-use assels 6 224 -
Nolos:

1) Figures In brackels represents oulllow of cash and cash equivalenls.

2) The slalement of cash flows has been prepared under the *Indirect method® as sol oul I Indian Accounting Slandard (Ind AS) 7 - *Stalament of Cash Flows™,
3) Reconclliation betwean opening and closing balances In Lhe balance sheel for fiabilities arising from financing activilies Is given In Nole 20 lo the financlal stalemenls.

The accompanying notes form an integral pad of these financiol slatements.

This s the Slatemenl of Cash Flows referred to in our reporl of even date

Avinash
Direclor
DIN : 03089201

For Walker Chandlok & Co LLP For and on behall of the Board of Direclors
Chartered Accounl; Vikrg Ineering Limited
Firm's Reglstralios r: 001076N / N500013
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Rakesh Markhodkar

Rakesh R Chalrman & Managing Director
Parlner DIN : 07009204
Members Place: Thane

Dale: 09 June 2026
Place: Mumbal
Date: 09 Juna 2025

Ashish Bahely
Chial Financial Officer
Place: Thane

Date: 09 June 2025

Place: Thane
Dalo: 00 June 2025

Kajal Rakhollya
Company Secrelary
Place: Thano
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Vikean Engl Ing Limited (f ly, Vikran Engl Private Limited)
Stalament of Changos In Equily for the year ended 31 March 2025
(ANl amoaunls in INR lakhs, unless olhervise slaled)

A. Equily share capllal

Parlculars Notes Number of shares Amount
Issued, subscrbed and (ully pald-up
Equity sharas
As al 01 April 2023 (Eqully shares of INR 10 each) 18 2,90,378 29
Increase/ (decrease) during the year 41,651 4
As al 31 March 2024 (Equity shares of INR 10 each) 18 3,32,020 n
Increase/ (decrease) during the year 18,32,49,101 1,803
As al 31 March 2025 (Equily shares of INR 1 each) 18 18,35,81,130 1,836
B. Otlher equity
Reserves and surplus
Parllculars Securitles premi Retalned I benlure Redi { Tolal
Reserve
As at 01 April 2023 1,374 11,710 . 13,084
Profil for the year . 7405 - 7,485
Dividend pald during the year (Refer note 45) - {392) (392)
Securilles premium on equily shares Issued during Ihe year 6,940 - - 8,940
Olher comprehensive Income / {loss) (nel of tax) - (21) - {21}
Balance as al 31 March 2024 10,314 18,782 . 29,096
Profit for the year B 7,781 - 7,781
Dividend paid during the year (Refer note 45) - (378) - (378)
Securilles premlum on equily shares Issued during Ihe year 10,401 - - 10,401
Issue of bonus shares during the year (1,800} - . (1,800)
Expenses direclly allributable to issua of equily sharas {130) - - (130)
Tax Impacl on expenses direclly allribulable lo issue of equity shares 28 - - 26
Adjustment on account of scheme of amalgamalion (Refer nole 55) - 42 . 42
Olher comprehensive income / (loss) (nel of lax) - (a7) - (7).
Transferred o debenlure redemplion reserve - {500) 500 -
Balance as al 31 March 2025 16,811 25,640 500 44,951
Nalura of raserves:
1) Securlllos pramium
Securities premium Is used ta record the premium received on issue of shares. The reserve is ulilised in accordance wilh the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
|l) Retalnad earnings
Relained earnings represenls the accumulaled profils / losses made by the Company over the years as reduced by di or olher bulions pald to the sharehalders, and includes
remeasurement galns/ loss an defined benefit plan.
1li} Dab ¢ Redemption Reserve (ORR)
The Company has issued r bl lible debenl and accordingly DRR Is crealed pursuanl lo the Companles (Share Capilal and Debenlures) Rules, 2014 (as amended). DRR is

required lo be crealed, oul of profils of he Company avallable for payment of dividend, uplo an amount which Is equal to 10% of tha tolal value of the debenlures Issued.

The accompanying noles form an Integral part of these financlal stalements.

This Is the Stalemenl of Changes In Equity referred (o in our reporl of even dale

o LLP For and on behall of tho Board of Directors
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Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

Corporate Information

Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited) (the "Company" or “Vikran" or "VEL") is a
Company domiciled in India. The Company having CIN U9300MH2008PLC272209, is an Engineering, Procurement and
Construction (EPC) Company. It provides end-to-end services from conceptualisation, design, supply, installation, testing
and commissioning on a turnkey basis and has presence across multiple sectors including power, water, and railway
infrastructure. The registered office of the Company is located at 401, Odyssey IT Park, Road No. 9, Wagle Industrial
Estate, Thane, Maharashtra, India — 400 604,

With effect from 30 July 2024, the name of the Company has been changed from Vikran Engineering & Exim Private
Limited to Vikran Engineering Private Limited. Posl that, with effect from 20 September 2024, the name of the Company
has been changed from Vikran Engineering Private Limited to Vikran Engineering Limited and accordingly, the Company
has become a public limited company with effect from such date.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on
09 June 2025.

1) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Seclion 133 of Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, other relevant provisions of the Act, the presentation and disclosures requirement of Division Il of Schedule
Il to the Act (Ind AS compliant Schedule [II).

The financial statements have been prepared using going concern assumption and on a historical cost basis, except for
certain financial assets and liabilities, defined benefit obligations and employee share-based payments, which are
measured at fair value.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is also the Company's functional currency. All
amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakh as per the requirements
of Schedule lll, unless otherwise stated. Any amount appearing in financial statements as ‘0' represent amount less than
INR 50,000.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the operating cycle
of the Company as per the guidance set out in Schedule |ll to the Act, Operating cycle for the business activities of the
Company covers the duration of the project/ contract/ service including the defect liability/ warranty period and extends up
to the realisation of receivables (including retention monies) within the credit period normally applicable to the respective
project/ contract/ service. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current only.

2) Material accounting policy information

a) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for variable considerations, if
any, as specified in the contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of the
government. Accruals for variable considerations are estimated based on accumulated experience and underlying
agreements with customers. Revenue is recognised when the Company satisfies performance obligations by transferring
the promised services or goods to its customers. When there is uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate collectability,
revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved.

The Company satisfies a perforrriance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

- As the entily performs, the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance.

- The entity's performance creates or enhances an asset (e.g., work in progress) that the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced.

- The entity's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the entity and the entity has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

Performance obligations with reference to EPC contracts are satisfied over the period of time, and accordingly, revenue
from such contracts is recognized based on progress of performance determined using input method with reference to the
cost incurred on contract and their estimated total costs. Margin is not recognised until the outcome of the contract is
cerlain. Transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer excluding amounts collected on behalf of a third party. Revenue, measured
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at lransaction price, is adjusted towards liquidated damages, time value of money and price variations, escalation, change
in scope etc. wherever, applicable. Variation in contract work and other claims are included to the extent that the amount
can be measured reliably, and there is no uncertainty regarding non-acceptance of such variation/ claims by the customer.

The Company evaluates whether each contract consists of a single performance obligation or multiple performance
obligations. Due to the nature of the work required to be performed on many of the performance obligations, the estimation
of total revenue and cost at completion is subject to many variables and requires significant judgement. The Company
considers ils experience with similar transactions and expectations regarding the contract in estimating the amount of
variable consideration to which it will be entitled and determining whether the estimated variable consideration should be
constrained. The. Company includes estimated amounts in the transaction price to the extent it is probable that a significant
reversal of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration
is resolved.

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the contract scope
or contract price. :

Progress billings are generally issued upon completion of certain phases of the work as stipulated in the contract. Billing
terms of the over-time contracts vary but are generally based on achieving specified milestones. The difference between
the timing of revenue recognised and customer billings resultin changes to contract assets (unbilled work in progress) and
contract liabilities. Contractual retention amounts billed to customers are generally due upon expiration of the contract
period.

The contracts generally result in revenue recognised in excess of billings which are presented as contract assets in the
balance sheet. Amounts billed and due from customers are classified as receivables on the statement of financial position.
The portion of the payments retained by the customer until final contract settlement is not considered a significant financing
component since it is usually intended to provide customer with a form of security for Company's remaining performance
as specified under the contract, which is consistent with the industry practice. Contract liabilities represent amounts billed
to customers in excess of revenue recognised till date. A liability is recognised for advance payments, and it is not
considered as a significant financing component since it is used to meet working capital requirements at the time of project
mobilization stage. The same is presented as contract liability in the balance sheet.

Estimates of revenue and costs are reviewed periodically and revised, wherever circumstances change, resulting increases
or decreases in revenue determination, is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which estimates
are revised.

Costs to obtain a contract which are incurred regardless of whether the contract was obtained are charged-off in statement
of profit and loss immediately in the period in which such costs are incurred.

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the amount outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable.

Income other than the above is recognised as and when due or received, whichever is earlier.

b) Taxes

Income tax expense comprises of current tax expense and deferred tax expenses. Current tax and deferred tax are
recognized in Statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.

(i) Current income tax:

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the provisions
of the Income Tax Act of the respeclive jurisdiction. The current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either
to setlle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(ii) Deferred tax:

Deferred lax is recognized using the Balance Sheet approach on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts,
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the deferred
tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assels is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income
in the years in which the temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority.

The Company recognises deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that both of the
following conditions are satisfied:

»  When the Company can control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference; and

o Itis probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

c) Property, Plant and Equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost, Cost of property, plant and equipment comprises
purchase price, non-refundable taxes, levies, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and any directly attributable
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant
and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The carrying
values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying property, plant and equipment.

ltems such as spare parls, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the definition of property, plant and
equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over their useful life. Costs in nature of repairs and maintenance are
recognized in the Statement of profit and loss as and when incurred. '

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule Il
to the Companies Act, 2013 as per straight line method.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each period
end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company had elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and
equipment recognised and measured as per the previous GAAP and had used that carrying value as the deemed cost of
the property, plant and equipment.

d) Investment properties

Investment properties are held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation, or both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of
business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Investment properties are
measured initially at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are
met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Subsequenl cosls are
included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
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On transition to Ind AS, the Company had elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its investment properties,
recognised and measured as per the previous GAAP and had used that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property,
plant and equipment.

e) Intangible assets

Intangible assets such as computer software acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried al cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment loss, if
any.

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life of 3 years on straight line method and is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss under the head "Depreciation and Amortisation expense”. The estimated useful life of the
intangible assets and the amortization period are reviewed at the end of each financial year and the amortization period is
revised to reflect the changed pattern, if any.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company had elected to continue with the carrying value of all of intangible assets recognised
and measured as per the previous GAAP and had used that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and
equipment.

f) Inventories

The stock of construction materials, stores, spares is valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower, However,
these items are considered to be realisable at cost if the finished products in which they will be used, are expected to be
sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on weighted average basis and includes all applicable cost of bringing the goods
to their present location and condition. Revenue from sale of scrap material is presented as reduction from cost of materials
consumed in the statement of profit and loss.

g) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash in hand and demand deposits with banks, short-term balances (with an original
maturity of three months or less and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. Margin money deposits, earmarked balances with banks and
other bank balances which have restrictions are presented as other bank balances.

h) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs consists of interest, ancillary costs and other costs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs attributable to acquisition and/or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as a part of the cost of
such assets, up to the date such assets are ready for their intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to the
statement of profit and loss.

i) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's
recoverable amount. An assel's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Groups of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

j) Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception or on reassessment of a contract whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Company as a lessee

At the commencement date of a lease or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company
recognises a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an assel representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Right-of-use assels are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation, impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-
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use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized and lease payments made at or before the commencement
date. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Company. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification or
a change in the lease term. The Company separately recognises the interest expense on the lease liability as finance cost
and the deprecialion expense on the right-of-use asset.

The Company accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease when both of the following conditions are met:
+ The modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or more underlying assets.

* The consideration for the lease increases commensurate with the price for the increase in scope and any adjustments
to that stand-alone price reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that fully or partially decreases the scope of the lease the Company decreases the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset. to reflect partial or full termination of the lease. Any difference between those
adjustments is recognized in profit or loss at the effective date of the modification.

The Company has elected lo use the exemptions proposed by the standard on lease contracts for which the lease terms
end within 12 months as of the date of initial application, and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low
value. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with such leases as an expense in the statement of
profit and loss.

k) Financial Instruments and Equity Instruments
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial instruments (assets and liabilities) are recognised when the Company becomes a party to a contract that gives
rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities, other than those designated as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in statement
of profit and loss. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.
The amount of retention money held by the customers is disclosed as part of trade receivables.

i. Financial assets

All regular way purchase or sale of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchase or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets thal require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets:

a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

b) Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
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Financial assets measured at amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
* The assel is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

+ Contractual terms of the instruments give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest
Rate (EIR) method. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimaled future cash receipts (including all fees, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument or where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The EIR amortisation is included in other income in the statement of profil and loss. The losses arising from impairment
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables, loans,
etc.

Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Debt instrument

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization
as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are
measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

+ The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement; and either

- the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

- the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred
control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition
of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

+ Debt instruments measured at amortised cost e.g., bank deposits and loan assets
* Trade receivables
+ Other financial assets not designated as FVTPL

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. Lifetime ECL
are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets other than trade receivables, the Company determines whether there
has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-
month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used.
If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month
ECL.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables as well as
contract assels. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition. —
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ii. Financial liabilities
Subsequent measurement

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings and other payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as FVTPL when the financial liabilities are held for trading or are designated as FVTPL
on initial recognition. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term, Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

De-recognition
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
iii. Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration under the contract with a customer that is
unconditional and realizable on the due date (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration
is due). Trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

iv. Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid as per agreed terms. Trade payables are presented based
on the operating cycle of the Company. They are recognised initially at their transaction price and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

v. Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received, net of expenses directly
attributable to issue of such equity.

1) Provisions (other than employee benefits)

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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m) Provision for warranty

The estimated liability for warranty is recorded at the commencement of defect liability period. These estimates are
established using historical information on the nature, frequency and average cost of obligations and management
estimates regarding possible future incidence based on corrective actions during the period under warranty phase.

n) Contingencies

Disclosure of contingent liabilities is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably
will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements however such assets are assessed continuously and if it
is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the assets and the related income are recognised in the
period in which the change occurs. Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

o) Employee Benefits

Liability on account of short-term employee benefits is recognised on an undiscounted and accrual basis during the period
when the employee renders service/ vesting period of the benefit.

Defined Contribution Plan:

The Company pays contribution to the provident fund, labour welfare fund and employee state insurance corporation which
is administered by respective Government authorities. The Company has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The Contributions are recognized as employee benefit expense in the statement of profit
and loss to the year it pertains.

Defined benefit plan:

(a) Gratuity: The Company's liability towards gratuity is based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method which considers each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of benefit entittement and measures each
unit separately to build up the final obligation. The cost for past services is recognized on a straight-line basis over the
average period until the amended benefits become vested.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained
earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that is determined by
reference to market yields at the reporting date on Government bonds where the currency and the terms of Government
bonds are consistent with the currency and eslimated term of defined benefit obligation.

(b) Compensated absences: The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve
months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided
for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the period end. The Company presents the
entire compensated absences provision as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional
right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date.

p) Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss (excluding OCI) for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue and share splits that
have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period as adjusted for dividend, interest and other
changes to expense and income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares by the
weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average
number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of dilutive potential equity shares. Potential
equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share
from conltinuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the
period, unless they have been issued at a later date.
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q) Exceptional items

When items of income and expense within profit or loss from ordinary aclivities are of such size, nature or incidence that
their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the enterprise for the period, the nature and amount of such
material items are disclosed separately as exceptional items.

r) Segment reporting

Operating segments are identified based on the manner in which the Chief Operating Decision Maker (‘CODM') decides
about resource allocation and reviews performance of the Company. The Managing Director and Whole Time Directors
are identified as CODM of the Company The CODM regularly monitors and reviews the operating result as one segment
of EPC. Thus, as defined in Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”, the Company's entire business falls under this one
operational segment.

s) Debenture Redemption Reserve (DRR)

The Company creates DRR in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, out of profits of the
Company available for payment of dividend.

t) Initial Public Offer (IPO) related transaction costs

The expenses pertaining to IPO includes expenses pertaining to fresh issue of equity shares, offer for sale by selling

shareholders and listing of equity shares and is accounted for as follows:

- Incremental costs that are directly attributable to issuing new shares are deferred until successful consummation of
IPO upon which it shall be deducted from equity;

- Incremental costs that are not directly attributable to issuing new shares or offer for sale by selling shareholders, are
recorded as an expense in the statement of profit and loss as and when incurred; and

- Costs that relate to fresh issue of equity shares and offer for sale by selling shareholders are allocated between those
funclions on a rational and consistent basis as per agreed terms.

u) Share issue expenses

Share issue expenses are adjusted against the Securities Premium Account as permissible under Section 52 of the Act, to
the extent any balance is available for utilisation in the Securities Premium Account. Share issue expenses in excess of
the balance in the Securities Premium Account is expensed in the statement of profit and loss.

2.1 Key accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires the management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed by management at each reporting date. Actual results could differ
from these estimates. Any revision of these estimates is recognised prospectively in the current and future periods.

Information about significant areas of estimation and assumptions/ uncertainty and judgements in applying accounting
policies are as follows:

(i) Deferred tax assets

The assessment of the probability of future taxable profit in which deferred tax assets can be utilized is based on the
Company's latest forecast, which is adjusted for significant non-taxable profit and expenses and specific limits to the use
of any unused tax loss or credit. If a positive forecast of taxable profit indicates the probable use of a deferred tax asset,
especially when it can be utilized without a time limit, that deferred tax asset is usually recognized in full.

(i) Revenue recognition

Determination of revenue under percentage of completion method necessarily involves making estimates, some of which
are of a technical nature, concerning, where relevant, the percentage of completion, costs to completion, the expected
revenue from the project or aclivity and foreseeable losses to completion. Estimates of project income, as well as project
costs, are reviewed periodically. The effect of changes, if any, to estimates is recognised in the financial statements in the
year in which such changes are determined.




Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

(iii) Current income taxes

The tax jurisdiction for the Company is India. Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income
taxes including judgment on whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax assessment
can involve complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time periods. The recognition of taxes that are
subject to certain legal or economic limits or uncertainties is assessed individually by management based on the specific
facts and circumstances.

(iv) Accounting for defined benefit plans

In accounting for post-retirement benefits, several statistical and other factors that attempt to anticipate future events are
used to calculate plan expenses and liabilities. These factors include expected discount rate assumptions and rate of future
compensation increases. To estimate these factors, actuarial consultants also use estimates such as withdrawal, turnover,
and mortality rates which require significant judgment. The actuarial assumptions used by the Company may differ
materially from actual results in future periods due to changing market and economic conditions, regulatory events, judicial
rulings, higher or lower withdrawal rates, or longer or shorter participant life spans.

(v) Impairment

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which an asset’s or cash-generating unit's carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount to determine the recoverable amount, management estimates expected future cash flows from
each asset or cash generating unit and determines a suitable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. In the process of measuring expected future cash flows, management makes assumptions about future
operating results. These assumptions relate to future events and circumstances. The actual results may vary and may
cause significant adjustments to the Company's assets.

In most cases, determining the applicable discount rate involves estimating the appropriate adjustment to market risk and
the appropriate adjustment to asset-specific risk factors.

(vi) Foreseeable losses

In case of contracts, when it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss
(foreseeable loss) is recognised. Such loss is measured based on management experience of handling similar contract in
past and estimates regarding possible future incidence during the contract period.

(vii) Expected credit loss

The measurement of ECL reflects a probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and the best available forward-
looking information. The correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and expected
credit loss is a significant estimate. The amount of expected credit loss is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecasted economic conditions. The Company's historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may
not be representative of the actual default in the future.

(viii) Fair value of financial instruments

Management uses valuation techniques in measuring the fair value of financial instruments where active market quotes
are not available. In applying the valuation techniques, management makes maximum use of market inputs and uses
estimates and assumptions that are, as far as possible, consistent with observable data that market participants would use
in pricing the instrument. Where applicable data is not observable, management uses its best estimate about the
assumptions that market participants would make. These estimates may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved
in an arm's length transaction at the reporting date.

(ix) Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as result of a past event and it is probable that the
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. These
are reviewed al each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. The assessment of the existence,
and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgements and the use of estimates
regarding the outcome of future events.

(x) Joint arrangements

Based on the requirement of tender issuing authority/ prospective customer, the Company has formed joint arrangement
which are not body corporate. The Company applies judgment considering the underlying terms agreed with the venturer,
substance of transactions and responsibility assumed by the Company including managing operations of such venture.
Basis such assessment, if the Company determines that (a) joint control does not exist and (b) in substance it assumes
practically all the risk and rewards related to such arrangements, it considers such arrangement as its own extension.
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Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Motes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

Accordingly, as at reporting periods, the Company has included the results and transactions of such arrangements in its
financial statements and has not considered such arrangements as separate component for reporting purpose.

(xi) Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of
a lease required significant judgement. The Company uses judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated
renewals) and the applicable incremental borrowing rate. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in non-
cancellable period of a lease.

(xii) Business combination

Management applies judgement in determining whether an acquisition/ merger constitute a business combination or not.
In applying judgement, the Company determines whether the acquisition/ merger constitute inputs and when processes
are applied to those inputs, it should have the ability to contribute to the creation of outputs. In case such criteria is not
met, the acquisition/ merger is not considered as business combination.

3) Recent accounting pronouncements
e Standards notified but not yet effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. As on the date of release of these
financial statements, MCA has notified an amendment to Ind AS 21 regarding lack of exchangeability between
currencies, which is applicable for reporting period beginning on or after 01 April 2025, Such amendment to
existing standard has not been adopted early by the Company.

» New and amended standards notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA')

Amendments to Ind AS 116 - The amendment to Ind AS 116 addresses the measurement of lease liabilities in
sale and leaseback transactions, ensuring that seller-lessees do not recognize any gain or loss related to the
retained right-of-use asset.

Ind AS 117 - Ind AS 117 shall be applicable to entities having (a) insurance contracts, including reinsurance
contracts, it issues; (b) reinsurance contracts it holds; and (c) investment contracts with discretionary participation
features it issues, provided the entity also issues insurance contracts.

MCA has also notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Third Amendment Rules, 2024, to provide
relief to the insurers or insurance companies. Additionally, Ind AS 104 has been reissued for use by the insurers
or insurance companies.

The above new and amended standards had no impact on the Company's financial statements.
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Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 4B: Investment properties

Particulars

Amount

Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 31 March 2023
Additions during the year

207

Balance as at 31 March 2024
Additions during the year

207

Balance as at 31 March 2025

207

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 31 March 2023
Deprecialion charge for the year

Balance as at 31 March 2024
Depreciation charge for the year

Balance as at 31 March 2025

Net carrying amount:
As at 31 March 2024
As al 31 March 2025

207
207

Notes:

i) Investment properlies of the Company comprise of land in respect of which the work towards its development has nol been started

as at the reporting dates.

i) The title deeds of the investment properties are held in the name of the Company as al the balance sheet dates.

iii) The Company has not earned any income from its investment properties during the reporting years.

iv) As at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, the fair values of the properties are INR 2,696 lakhs and INR 2,696 lakhs respectively.
The valuation is based on valuation performed by an independent valuer registered in terms of the Act. Such independent valuer
has considered the circle rate issued by the local authority for determining the fair value. Circle rates are primarily dependent on

factors such as location, zoning, market trends, infrastructure, and other amenities available in the area.




Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 5: Intangible Assets

Particulars Computer Total
software
Gross carrying amotnt
As at 31 March 2023 253 253
Additions during the year 4 4
Disposals during the year - -
As at 31 March 2024 257 257
Additions during the year 7 7
As at 31 March 2025 264 264
Accumulated amortisation
As at 31 March 2023 158 158
Amorlisation charge for the year 76 76
Reversal on disposals L =
As at 31 March 2024 234 234
Amorlisation charge for the year 10 10
As at 31 March 2025 244 244
Net carrying amount
As al 31 March 2024 23 23
As at 31 March 2025 20 20




Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
{All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

Note 6: Right-of-use (ROU) assets

Particulars Leased premises Total

Gross carrying amount
As at 31 March 2023 295 295
Additions during the year - -
Disposals during the year - -
As at 31 March 2024 295 295
Additions during the year 176 176
Disposals during the year (224) (224)
As at 31 March 2025 247 247

Accumulated depreciation
As at 31 March 2023 114 114
Depreciation charge for the year 86 86
Reversal on disposals - -
As at 31 March 2024 200 200
Deprecialion charge for lhe year 7 77
Reversal on disposals (180) (180)
As at 31 March 2025 97 97

Net carrying amount
As al 31 March 2024 95 95
As al 31 March 2025 150 150

Note:

(i) Refer note 39 for disclosure on leased asset.




Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

Note 7: Investments

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Current

= Units of mutual funds* 113 90
Total 113 90
Aggregate amount of quoted inveslments and markel value thereof - -
Aggregale amount of unquoted investments 113 90
Aggregale amount of impairmenl allowance in the value of investments - -
Investments carried al amortised cost - -
Invesiments carried al fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) - -
Invesiments carried al fair value through profil and loss 113 30

* Includes INR 109 lakhs (31 March 2024 : INR 87 lakhs) given as collaterals against borrowings taken by the Company.

Mote: Information required under section 186(4) to the Act
(a) The Company has nol made any investment excepl as disclosed above.

Note 8: Loans

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Unsecured, considered good
Loan lo arelaled parly* (Refer note 42) 203 -

203 s

Sub-classification of loans:
Loans considered good - secured - -
Loans considered good - unsecured 203 .
Loans which have significant increase in credil risk - -
Loans - credil impaired 3 &
Total 203 -

* Loan to a relaled party includes INR 203 lakhs (31 March 2024 : Nil) given lo an enlity in which one of the directors is a director.

Note: Information required under section 186(4) to the Act
(a) Loan to a relaled party carries an inlerest rate of 18.00% p.a. The same has been given lowards general corporate and working capital purposes and it is repayable
on demand.

Note 9: Other financial assets

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Non-current (Unsecured, considered good)
Bank deposits having remaining maturily of more than 12 months® 2,069 2,567
2,069 2,567
Current {Unsecured, considered good)
Securily deposils** 638 70
Earnest money deposils (EMD)"* 369 172
Receivable from promoter selling sharehalder $8 57 -
Other receivables®** 89 69
1,153 i)

* For delails of fixed deposits held as security, refer note 16.
** Securily deposils and EMD's are interesl free non-derivative financial assets carried al amortised cost. These primarily includes deposils given against rented
premises, lender bidding and towards cerlain borrowings availed by the Company.

$$ Represents expense recoverable from the promoter selling shareholder, which has been incurred by the Company towards proposed Initial Public Offering (IPO) of the
equity shares of lhe Company. The same Is recoverable In the proportion of offer for sale to total issue size.

*“** Primarily includes reimbursements receivable from customers towards amount paid for erop comp tion and claim receivable from an insurance company agains!
theft.
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Notes to the financial stalements as al and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise slaled)

Note 10: Deferred tax assets (net)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of :

Deferred tax assets arising on account of
Expense allowable on paymenl basis

Expected credit loss

Temporary differences between right of use assets and lease liability 1 5
1 5
998 586

Impact of items allowed under the Income Tax Acl, 1961 on a propotionale basis 41 -
. 452 275
 Temparary diffs ween hook and lax bal of property, plant and equipment 34 20
1,525 881
1,524 876

Net deferred tax assels

The Company offsels lax assels and liabilllies only if it has a legally enfarceable right lo set off current lax assets and current tax liabilities, and Ihe deferred lax assets and deferred lax liabilities

relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

(a) Movement in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities from 01 Aprif 2024 to 31 March 2025

balance as at
01 April 2023

credited to P&L

credited to OCl| credited to
other equity

Particulars Opening {Charged) / (Charged) / (Charged) / Closing
balance as al | credited to P&L | credited to OCI| credited lo balance as al
01 April 2024 other equity | 31 March 2025
Deferred tax liablily arising on account of
Temporary differences between right of use assels and lease liability 5 4 - - 1
5 4 - = 1
Deferred tax asset arising on account of
Expense allowable on paymenl basis 586 383 29 - 998
Impact of items allowed under the Income Tax Acl, 1961 on a propotionate basis - 15 - 26 41
Expected credit loss 275 177 - - 452
On timing difference between boak depreciation and deprecialion as per lhe Income-tax Acl, 1961 20 i) - - 34
881 589 29 26 1,525
Deferred lax assels (nel) 886 593 29 26 1,524
(b) Movement in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities from 01 April 2023 to 31 March 2024
Particulars Opening (Charged) (Charged)/ (Charged) / Closing

balance as al
31 March 2024

Deferred tax liabililies arising on account of
On liming difference between baok depreciation and deprecialion as per the Income-lax Acl, 1961

Temporary differences between right of use assets and lease liability

Deferred tax assets arising on account of

Expense allowable on paymenl basis

Expecled credi loss

On timing difference between book depreciation and depreciation as per the Incame-tax Act, 1961

Deferred tax assets (net)

] ©) - - -
3 2 - - 5
12 (7) - - 5
454 126 7 = 586
144 131 - - 275
- 20 - - 20
598 277 7 - 881
586 284 7 - 876
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(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise slated)

Note 11: Non-current tax assets (net)

Particulars

As al
31 March 2025

As al
31 March 2024

Advance income lax (nel)

185

388

185

388

Note: The above amounts are nel off provisions - 31 March 2025: INR 5,411 lakhs and 31 March 2024: INR 3,091 lakhs.

Note 12: Other assets

Particulars

As al
31 March 2025

As al
31 March 2024

Non - current:
Prepaid expenses
Balances with government authoritias (net)*

Current:

Advances lo employ (Ur i ids good)

Prepaid expenses

Share issue expenses®

Advances lo liers and sub-c (Unsecured, considered good) (Refer note 42}
Balances with government authorlities (net)

314 506
876 800
1,190 1,306
356 241
464 544
438 -
1,193 1,713
2,529 1,381
4,980 3,879

A Represenls amaunt paid under protest lowards dispuled demands of indirect taxes.

* Pertains lo expenses incurred by the Company towards proposed Initial Public Offering (IPO) of the equity shares of the Company carried farward lo the extent of Company’s share, which will be adjusled with

securilies premium at the time of issue of shares in.accordance with the requirement of Section 52 of the Act.

Note 13: Inventories (valued al lower of cost and net realisable value)

Particulars As at . Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Construclion materials 5,804 4,822
Slores and spare parls 190 164
Goods in transit = 87
5,994 5,073

Note: Inventories providedhwritten off during the year ended 31 March 2025: INR 87 lakhs and 31 March 2024: INR 55 lakhs. These amounls are recognised as an expense in fhe slalement of profit and loss.

Nole 14: Trade receivables

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Unsecured:
Cansidered good;

- Receivable from related parly (Refer nole 42) 148 166
- Olhers (Refer note 14.1) 63,284 46,224
Credil impaired 1,745 1,090
65,177 47 480
Less! Expected credit loss allowance {Refer note 14.2) (1,745) (1,090}
Total 63,432 46,390
Sub-classification of trade receivables
Considered good - secured . -
Considered good - unsecured 63,432 46,390
i i in credit risk - -
Credit impaired 1,745 1,090
Less: Expecled credil loss allowance {1,745) (1,090)
63,432 46,390

MNoles:

(a) Trade receivables includes an amount of INR 148 lakhs (31 March 2024 : INR 166 lakhs) from a enlity in which one of the directors is a pariner.

(b) Trade feceivables includes retention maney amounting to INR 16,545 lakhs (31 March 2024 : INR 11,063 |akhs).




Vikran Engineering Limited (f iy, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
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Note 14.1: Trade receivables as at 31 March 2025 includes amount from a customer amounting ta INR 2,929 lakhs (31 March 2024 : INR 2,929 lakhs). The said customer invoked the performance and advance
guarantee and short closed the project in the month of Agril 2023. The Company has filed a claim for recovery of dues from the customer in the commercial court Jaipur and the malter is currently pending for
disposal. Management, based on the contractual tenability of their claim and legal opinian obtained, is confident of recovering such amount and hence the same is considered good for recovery as al the reparting
date, and also no liahility is likely to arise for the Company on the aforesaid matter and accerdingly, no adjustments have been made to the financial statements in this respect.

Note 14.2: Movement in expected credit loss allc :

As at As at
Partlculars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,080 572
Add; Allowance made during the year 655 517
Less: Reversal of allowance/ amounts wrilten back = "
Balance at the end of the year 1,745 1,090

Trade receivables ageing (excluding expected credit loss allowance)

As at 31 March 2025

Outstanding for following years from due date of payment

Particulars Not Due Less than 8 | & months ~ 1-2years | 2-3years | Mare than 3 years Total
months 1 year

(i) Undispuled trade receivables - considered good 50,484 6,564 2,228 684 346 197 60,503

(i) Undisputed Irade recelvables - credil impaired 51 131 203 228 348 786 1,745

(iii) Disputed trade receivables - considered good - - - - 2,929 » 2,929

(iv) Dispuled Irade recaivables - credit impaired & g - = = i =

Total 50,535 6,695 2,431 912 3,621 983 65,177

As at 31 March 2024

Outstanding for following years from due date of payment

Fanticulazs Not Due Fessifans: 6 nonms 21 1-2 years | 2-3years | More than 3 years Total
months year

(i) Undisputed trade receivables - considered good 38,754 3,158 633 647 116 153 43,461

(i) Undispuled trade receivables - credit impaired 40 37 70 210 116 617 1,080

(ili) Disputed trade receivables - considered good - - - 2,929 - - 2,929

(iv) Dispuled trade receivables - eredit impaired - - - - - - -

Total 38,794 3,195 703 3,786 232 770 47,480

Note 15: Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balances with banks in current accounts 51 1
In deposits account with ariginal maturity of less than 3 months 191 -
Cash on hand 8 7
Total 250 8

Note: There are no repatriation restriction with regard to above cash and cash equivalents as at the end of respective reporting years.
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless olherwise slated)

Note 16: Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

In deposits accounts 6,457 4,987
Total 6,457 4,987
Fixed deposits (current and non-current) held as margin money or security against 8,088 7,555

borrowings and other commitments.

*held as margin money with Central Excise for duly free imports
Refer note 36 for information on credit risk of bank deposits.

Note: The above fixed deposits are held as margin money or securily against borrowings, guarantees and other commitments,

Note 17: Contract assets (unbilled work in progress)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Unsecured, considered good

Contract assels (unbilled work in progress) 46,684 28,916
Less: loss allowance (47) al
Total 46,637 28,916

Note 17.1: Refe note 50 for additional details in relation to contracl assets.

Note 17.2 Movement in loss allowance on contract assets:

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Allowance made during the year 47 -
Less: Reversal of allowance/ amounts written back - -
Balance at the end of the year 47 -
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Note 18: Equity share capital

Authorised share capital:

Particulars Number Amount
Balance as at 01 April 2023 (Equity shares of face value INR 10 each) 5,00,000 50
Change during the year 5 %
Balance as at 31 March 2024 (Equity shares of face value INR 10 each) 5,00,000 50
Change during the year on accounl of sub-division of shares (refer note (g) below) 45,00,000 .
Increase in authorised share capital (refer nole (i) below) 29,50,00,000 2,950
Balance as at 31 March 2025 (Equity shares of face value INR 1 each) 30,00,00,000 3,000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up:

Particulars Number Amount

Balance as at 01 April 2023 (Equity shares of face value INR 10 each) 2,90,378 29
Movement during the year (Refer note below) 41,661 4
Balance as at 31 March 2024 (Equity shares of face value INR 10 each) 3,32,029 33
Mavement during the year (Refer note below) 18,32,49,101 1,803
Balance as at 31 March 2025 (Equity shares of face value INR 1 each) 18,35,81,130 1,836

Note: Details of movement in equily shares during the year:

During the year ended 31 March 2025 :

Face value at the Securities Total amount Total amount
date of issue premium (excluding (including
. No, Particul
5.Ng artioulare Number (in INR) {in INR) securlties securlties
premium) premium)
i.  |Shares issued during the year for consideration in cash 27,634 10.00 37,637.32 3 10,404
i, |lssue of shares on account of sub-division of shares (refer note (g) below) 32,36,967 1.00
’ Reduclion of exisling shares of the Company as per the scheme of amalgamation
.| rofer nate (h) belovs) (28,93,780) 1.00 5 (29) (29)
Issue of new equity shares of the Company lo the shareholders as per the scheme
W ot amalgamation (refer note (h) below) 26,06,780 140 ° 5, 2
v, _|Issue of bonus shares (refer note [e(ii)] below) 17,99,81,500 1.00 - 1,800 1,800
Total 18,32,49,101 1,803 12,204
During the year ended 31 March 2024 :
Face value at the Securities Total amount Tetal amount
date of issue premium (in (excluding (including
5: o SERLE Humt e (in INR) INR) securities securities
premium) premium)
i Shares issued during the year* 41,651 10.00 21,465.11 4 8,944

* Includes 3,700 equily shares issued lo Vikran Global Infraprojects Private Limiled upon conversion of borrewings into equity shares during the year ended 31 March 2024.

a) Terms and rights attached to equily shares
The Campany has anly ane class of equily shares having a par value of INR 1 per share as on 31 March 2025, Each holder of equity shares |s entitled to one vote per share, The equily
shareholders are enfitled lo dividend lo be proposed by the Board of Directors and lo be appraved by the sharehalders in the general meeling, except interim dividend, if any. In lhe evenl
of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be enlilled to receive remaining assets of the Company. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of fully paid-up
equily shares held by the shareholders.

b) Details of equily shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares in the Company
f sharehold As at As at
Nrme:of:sharaholdar 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Number % of holding Number % of holding
(Face value of {Face value of INR
INR 1 each) 10 each)

Rakesh Markhedkar 10,83,57,150 59.02% - -
Kanchan Markhedkar 1,32,96,210 7.24% - -
Nakul Markhedkar 1,32,96,210 7.24% - -
Vipul Markhedkar 1,32,96,210 7.24% - -
India Inflection Opparlunily Trusl — India Inflection Oppartunity Fund 1,06,87,050 5.82% 20,955 6.31%
Deb Suppliers & Traders Private Limitad - - 1,44,948 43.66%
Farista Financial Consultants Private Limiled - - 1,44,430 43.50%

The above information is furnished as per the shareholders register as al 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 respectively.




Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Noles to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

c) Details of equily shares held by promoters

Particulars Asat fwzal
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Number of % of holding | Number of shares % of holding
shares (Face value of INR
(Face value of 10 each)
INR 1 each)
Rakesh Markhedkar (refer nole (h) below) 10,83,57,150 59.02% 1,000 0.30%
Avinash Markhedkar* = = 3 =
Nakul Markhedkar* 1,32,96,210 7.24% - =
Deb Suppliers & Traders Privale Limited - - 1,44,948 43.66%
Farista Financial Cansullants Private Limiled - - 1,44,430 43.50%
d) % change in promoters shareholding
% change during % change

the year ended 31 | during the year

Panticulars March 20254 | ended 31 March
2024
Deb Suppliers & Traders Private Limited -43,66% -6.26%
Farisla Financial Consullanls Private Limiled -43.50% -6.24%
Nakul Markhedkar* 7.24% -

Rakesh Markhedkar® 58.72% -0.04%

9)

h

* During the current year, the Beard of Direclors of the Company in their mealing held on 24 Seplember 2024 have designated Mr. Avinash Markhedkar and Mr. Nakul Markhedkar as
additional promoters of the Company. Also refer nole (h) below.

** Percentage change during the year ended 31 March 2024 was on accoun! of additional equity shares issued by the Company during thal year, however there was ne change in the
number of equity shares held by the promoters.

A Rafer note (h) below.

Bonus shares / buy back / shares for consideration other than cash issued during past five years:
(i) Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant e contracts withoul payment being received in cash:

For the year ended 31 March 2025 : The Company has allotted 3,000 equily shares pursuant to approval of scheme ol amalgamalion of lhe Company wilh il's erstwhile promolers. Also
refer nate 55.
For the year ended 31 March 2024 : 3,700 shares alloled lo Vikran Global Infraproject Private Limited upon conversion of loan inlo equity shares during the year ended 31 March 2024,

(ii) Aggregale number and class of shares allolled as lully paid up by way of bonus shares -

For the year ended 31 March 2025 : The Campany, in ils annual general meeting daled 26 Augusl 2024 approved lhe issuance of boenus shares lo the equity sharehelders in the ralio of
50 equily shares for each share held. The record dale for the said purpose was fixed as 23 Augusl 2024,
For the year ended 31 March 2024 : Nil

(iif) Aggregate number and class of shares bought back - Nil for the reporting periods.

The Company has made private placement of equity shares during the year ended 31 March 2025. The Company has complied with the applicable requirements of section 42 and section
62 of the Acl and (he rules framed thereunder with respect lo the same. Further, the amounls so raised have been ulilised by lhe Company for lhe purposes for which these funds were
raised.

Pursuant to a resolution passed in extraordinary general meeting of the Company dated 12 August 2024, shareholders have approved sub-division of each equity share having face value
of INR 10 each into equily shares of face value of INR 1 each,

During the currenl year, pursuant ta approval by National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) of the scheme of amalgamation of the Company with Farisla Financial Consullants Private
Limited and Deb suppliers and Traders Private Limited (collectively referrred lo as 'erstwhile promoters'), these erstwhile promoters have been amalgamated with the Company and the
shares held by lhese two enlities have been reduced from lhe share capital of the Company and in-turn new shares of the Company have been issued lo the shareholders of erstwhile
promoters which included Mr, Rakesh Markhedkar. Also refer nole 55.

During the currenl year, the Company has increased lhe aulhorised share capital from exisling 5,000,000 equity shares to 300,000,000 equity shares of INR 1 each, which was approved
by the sharaholders in the extraordinary general meeting held on 12 August 2024,




Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
MNoltes to the financlal statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless olherwise slaled) -

Note 19: Other equity

(i)

(iii)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Securities premium 18,811 10,314
Relained earnings 25,640 18,782
Debenlure redemplion reserve 500 -
Total 44,951 29,096
Securities premium

As al As at
Particulars 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 10,314 1,374
Securities premium on equily shares Issued during lhe year 10,401 8,940
Issue of bonus shares during the year (1,800) -
Expenses direclly altribulable lo issue of equily shares (130) -
Tax impacl on expenses directly attribulable to issue of equity shares 26 -
Balance at the end of the year 18,811 10.314
Retained earnings

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 18,782 11,710
Profil for the year 7,781 7,485
Dividend paid during the year (Refer note 45) (378) (392)
Items of other comprehensive income/(loss) recognised in retained earnings (net of lax) (87) (21)
Adjustment on account of scheme of amalgamalion (Refer nole 55) 42 -
Transferred lo Debenture Redemplion Reserve (500) -
Balance at the end of the year 25,640 18,782
Debenture Redemption Reserve

As at As at
e 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year - o
Transferred from retained earnings 500 -
Bal. at the end of the year 500 -




Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Nates to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amnounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 20: Borrowings

Particulars As at As al
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Non-current - at amortised cost
Secured
Term loans
- from banks 990 1,529
Less: Current malurities of long-term borrowings (418) (552)
572 77
Vehicle loans
- from banks 118 5
Less: Current maturities of long-lerm borrowings (22) (3
94 2
Non-convertible debentures (NCD)
100 units of redeemable NCD's of face value of INR 50,00,000 each 5,000 -
Less: Current malurities of long-lerm borrowings (2,500) -
2,500 -
Unsecured
Working capital loans
- from banks 26 171
- from financial inslitution &7 282
Less: Current malurilies of long-term borrawings (67) (362)
26 91
3,192 1,070
Current - at amorlised cost
Secured
Current malurities of long-term borrowings 2,940 556
Cash credit facilities 13,015 11,697
Working capital loans:
- from financial Institution 2,750 =
Supplier bills discounted
- from financial inslitution 4,742 3,737
23,447 15,989
Unsecured
Current malurities of long-term borrowings 67 362
Working capital loans:
- from banks - 39
- from financial Institution 575 818
Supplier bills discounted
- from financial institution 13 61
655 1,280
24,102 17,269

a) Nature, security and terms of repayment of borrowings :
1) Term loan from banks :

(i) Term loan from banks includes working capital term loans/general business requirement loans carrying variable inlerest rate ranging from 7.95% p.a. to
9.60% p.a. linked to MCLR with agreed interes! rate resel clause and is repayable in 60 to 72 equal monthly Instalments along with interest, upto FY 2027-
28. These are primarily secured by way of first pari-passu charge on the enlire current assels of lhe Company including inventories, receivables and all
olher current assets bolh present as well as future, The loan are also secured by cerlain office premises, land, fixed deposils and mulual funds
investmenls of the Company.

The loan is also secured by way of personal guarantee by Mr. Rakesh Markhedkar (Chairman and Managing director), Mr. Avinash Markhedkar (Director),
Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar (relative of a Director), Mr. Nakul Markhedkar (Relative of a Director) and Mr. Vipul Markhedkar (Relalive of a Direclor). The
facility is also secured by way of corporate guaranlee given by Farisla Financials Consultants Privale Limited (Promoter) and Deb Suppliers and Traders
Private Limited (Promoter). The above menlioned personnel have also given cerlain personal Immovable properties as security. Post merger of the
aforesaid two Promoler enlilies with the Company, the cerporate guarantees have ceased o exist during the current year.

2) Vehicle loan from banks:

(i) Vehicle loan from banks amounling INR 114 lakhs (31 March 2024 : Nil) carries fixed inlerest rate of 10.50% p.a. and is repayable in 60 monthly
inslalments along with interest uplo FY 2029-2030. The vehicles financed through such barrowing are forming part of the properly, planl and equipment
and have been hypothecaled for the said borrowings.

{il) Vehicle loan from banks amounting INR 2 lakhs (31 March 2024 : INR 5 lakhs) carries variable interest rate of 10.45% p.a. linked lo Repo Linked Loan
Rate (RLLR) with agreed inleresl rate resel clause and is repayable in 60 monthly instaiments along with interest uplo FY 2025-26. The vehicles financed
through such borrowing are forming part of the properly, plant and equipment and have been hypothecated for the said borrowings.
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise slated)

3) Cash credit facilities

Cash credit facililies are repayable on demand carrying variable inlerest rale ranging from 9.25% p.a. lo 12.77% p.a. linked to MCLR. These are primarily
saecured by way of hypothecation on Ihe enlire current assels of the Company, both present as well as fulure,

The facllity is also secured by way of personal guarantee by Mr. Rakesh Markhedkar (Chairman and Managing director), Mr. Avinash Markhedkar
(Direclor), Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar (relative of a Director), Mr. Nakul Markhedkar (Relative of a Director) and Mr. Vipul Markhedkar (Relalive of a
Director). The facilily is also secured by way of corporale guarantee given by Farista Financials Consullants Privale Limited (Promater) and Deb Suppliers
and Traders Private Limiled (Promoter). The above mentioned personnel have also given cerlain personal immovable properfies as security. Post merger
of he aforesaid two Promoter entitles with the Company, the corporale guarantees have ceased lo exisl during the current year.

4) Working capital loan from banks (unsecured) (current and non-current) :
Working capltal loans from banks carries fixed interest rate ranging from 14.00% p.a. to 17.50% p.a. and is repayabla in 12 to 36 monthly instalments
along with interest.

5) Working capital loan from financial Institutions (unsecured) (current and non-current):
Working capital loans from financial instilutions carries fixed interesl rate ranging from 9.00% p.a. to 34.00% p.a. and is repayable in 10 lo 36 monthly
instalments along wilh interest.

6) Non-converlible debentures:

The Company has issued 2 tranches of 50 units each of redeemable non-convertible debentures of face value of INR 50 lakhs each on a private
placement basis. These debenlures carries fixed inlerest rate of 12.00% p.a and are redemable al par on maturily on 23 January 2026 (Tranche - 1) and
on 10 April 2026 (Tranche - 2). These debenlures have been issued for fulliling the working capital requirements of the Company and other general
carporale purposes.

These are secured by way of:

(i) Residual/subservient charge on current assels of the Company.

(i) Personal guarantee of Mr. Rakesh Markhedkar (Chairman and Managing director).

(iii) Demand promissory notes.

(iv) Fixed deposits equivalent to interest for one quarler

7) Working capital loan from financial institutions {secured) (current):

(i) Working capilal loan amounting to INR 1,000 lakhs carries variable interest rate ranging from 10.00% p.a. lo 10.25% p.a. linked to BLR (Lender's
Benchmark lending rate) with agreed interest rale resel clause and Is repayable in 4 quarterly inslallments up to FY 2025-26. These are primarily secured
by way of (i) NACH Mandate and 3 cheques atong with demand Promissory note and (ii) Cash collateral to the extent of 20% of principal amount as
security deposil. The loan is also secured by way of persanal guarantee by Mr. Rakesh Markhedkar (Chairman and Managing director), Mrs. Kanchan
Markhedkar (refative of a Director) and Mr. Nakul Markhedkar (Relative of a Director).

ity Working capital loan amounting ta INR 250 lakhs carries variable interes rate of 11.50% p.a. linked lo FRR (Floating reference rale) wilh agreed
interest rate resel clause and Is repayable in 12 monthly installments up ta FY 2025-26. These are secured by way of Cash callateral lo the extent of 15%
of principal amount as security deposit. The loan is also secured by way of personal guarantee by Mr, Rakesh Markhedkar (Chairman and Managing
director), Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar (relalive of a Direclor) and Mr. Nakul Markhedkar (Relative of a Director), Farista Financials Consultanls Privale
Limited (Promoler) and Deb Suppliers and Traders Privale Limited (Promoter). Post merger of Ihe aforesaid two promoter enlities with the Company, the
corporale guarantees have ceased lo exist during the current year.

(iil) Working capital loan amounting lo INR 1,500 lakhs carries variable interesl rale of 10.95% p.a. linked lo VCL Index rate with agreed interes rate resel
clause and is repayable in 4 quarterly instalments up to FY 2025-26. These are primarily secured by way of (i) NACH Mandale and 3 cheques and (ii)
Cash callateral (o the extenl of 15.00% to 25.00% of principal amount as security deposil (i) A subservient and conlinuing charge by way of hypathecation
on all movable fixed assels and current assets both presenl and future and as more particularly staled in the deed of hypothecation iv) A Demand
Promissory Note and a letter of conlinuity. The loan is also secured by way of personal guarantee by Mr. Rakesh Markhedkar (Chairman and Managing
director), Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar (relative of a Director), Mr. Nakul Markhedkar {Relative of a Director) and Mr. Vipul Markhedkar (Relative of a
Director).

8) Supplier bills discounted (secured and unsecured):

The Company participates in supply chain financing arrangement (SCF) which is presented under borrowings under which suppliers may elect lo recelve
early payment of their invalce by factoring their receivable from the Company.

Secured:

Such arrangement carries interest rale ranging from 12.50% p.a. lo 13.75% p.a. and are repayable within a period of 90 to 120 days. The same are
secured by way of bank guarantees provided and certain fixed deposits of Ihe Company.

Unsecured:
Unsecured SCF carries interest rale of 11.25% p.a. and is repayable within a year.
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Noteas to the financlal statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

{All amaounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

b) (i} The quertedy returns/statements of current assets filed by the Company with bank is in agreement with the books of account for the quarters of the year ended 31 March 2025 axcept for following instances:

Name of the bank

Working capltal limits.
sanctioned

Nature of current assets held as
security

Quarter ended

Particulars of

securities provided

Amaunt disclosed as
par returmn

Amount as per hooks
of account

Difference*

14,500

14,500

All the current assets of the

14,500

Company

14,500

June 2024

Inventeries

5,348

5,520

(172)

Trade receivablas
(including contract
assels net of contract
liabilities)

65,502

85,473

29

September 2024

Inventariss

6,450

6,449

Tradz receivables
(including contract
assals nel of conlract
liabilitizs)

58,240

68,240

December 2024

Inventories

6211

6,033

178

Trade receivables
(including contract
assets net of contract

78,943

83,586

(4,843)

March 2025

Invantories

4,678

5,994

(1,318)

Trade receivables
(including contract
assels net of contract
lighiliies)

105,591

107,481

(1.870)

*The differances ars dua la submissions baing by the Campany on the basis of provisional financial information,

b) (Il) The quarterly retums/stataments of current assets filed by the Campany with bank is in agraement with the boaks of zccount far the quarters-of the year endad 3| March

2024 except for following instances’

Name of the bank

Working capital limits
sanctioned

Natura of current assels held as
securlty

Quarter ended

Particulars of
securitles provided

Amaunt disclosed as
per return

Amountas per books
of aceaunt

Difference'*

Consartium of banks

13,000

13,000

All the current assets of the

June 2023

Inventores

4,730

4,407

323

Trade receivables
(including contract
assets nat of conract
liabilities)

46,285

44,890

1,408

September 2023

Inventories

5410

4.962

448

Trade recelvables
{including contract
assels nat of contract
fiahiliies)

40,691

40424

267

13,000

13,000

December 2023

Inventories

5,668

5,135

531

Trade receivables
(including cantract
assels net of cantract
lishilities)

38,238

37,904

335

March 2024

Invéntores

5112

5,073

Trada rece(vables
{including contract
assels net of contract
liabilitias)

64,904

61,837

3,267

**The differances are due to submissions being by the Campany on the basis of provisional financial information.

©) Tha Company has utilised the borrawings for the spacific purpose for which it was oblained.

d) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financlal institution or lender during the reporting periad and Company Is alsain

financial

wviith appli

ts wheraver prescribed In th

& terms and canditians of borrewings.

€] Reconclllation between opening and closing balances In the balance sheet for arising from tivities as required by Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows" Is as under:
As at HNon-cash changes As at
Particulats 01 April 2024 e e Intarest accrued Other changes 31 March 2025
Equity shara capltal {Refer nota (i) belaw) 33 3 - - 1.800 1,836
Securilies pramium (Refer nate (i) below) 10,314 10,271 - - (1,774) 18,811
Long-tarm harrawings (including current maturities) 1,087 5120 (a08) - - 6,189
Leass liabilitias (Refer note (i) belaw) 74 - (88) 11 154 151
Short-term barrawinas (Refer nale (iv) below) 16,352 6,577 (1,834)] = = 21,095
As at Non-cash changes As at
Particulars 01 April 2023 Cash Inflows Cash outflows et acenied Otherchanges 31 March 2024
Equity share capital (Refer note (1) below) 23 4 - - - 33
Securities pramium (Refar note (i) balow) 1,374 8,146 - - 784 10,314
Long-term i i current ies) 4,409 348 (1,835) (E30) (784) 1,887
Leasze liabiliies (Refar note {ill) below) 170 = (104} a 4] 74
Short-term barrowings {Refer note {iv) below) 11,082 5784 (625) 41 B0 16,352

Notes :

(1) Other changas in equity share capltal is on account af equity shares Issuad far consideration other than cash and on account of bonus shares issued during the ralevant year,
(li} Cther changes In securities premium I5 on account of equlty shares lssued for considaration ather than cash and bonus shares issued during the relevant year,
(fil) Other changes In lease ljabilites s on account of lease liabilities recognized In accordance with Ind AS 118 in the respective years including ather adjustments therean in [ease lishilites,

{iv) Other changes in barrawings is accaunt of

g costand of

Ings into equity during the year anded 31 March 2024,

1) The Company has not dafaulled in repayment of loans or other borrawings to any lender or in the payment of interest theroan.
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Notas lo the financial statements as al and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts in INR fakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 21: Lease liabilities

Parliculars As al As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Non-currant
Lease liabllitias (Refer note 39) 80 38
B0 38
Current
Lease liabilities (Refer note 39) 72 36
72 36

. Note 22: Trade payables

Particulars Asat As al
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Dues lo:
- Micro enterprises and smiall enterprises (MSE) 9,181 4,826
- Trade payables olher than MSE 38,581 24,866
@ 47,762 29,692

() Trade payables are generally non-interest bearing and are settled within normal operating cycle of the Company.

{b) Trade payables includes relantion maney amounting to INR 7,240 lakhs and INR 5,743 lakhs as on 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

Note: Micro and Small Enlerprises under the Micro, Small and Madium Enlerpiises Davelopment Acl, 2006 (MSMED Act) have baen delarminad based on the informalion as available with lhe Company and the delails of amount outstanding

due to them are as given below:

Particulars

As al
31 March 2025

Asat
31 March 2024

(a) The principal amount and Ihe interest due thereon remaining unpaid lo any supplier as af the end of each accounling year

= Principal amount due lo micro and small enterprises 8,693 4,578
- Interest due an above 489 250
{b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in lerms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enlerprises Development Acl, 2006, along with the amotint of the payment made 1o the
supplier beyond the appolnted day during each accounting year. . G
(€) The amount ¢f interest due and payable [or the year of delay in making payment (which have been paid bul beyond the appoinied day during the year) bul without adding the interes! specified 256 176
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enlerprises Davelopmeanl Act, 2006.
(d) The amounl of inleres! accrued and remalning unpaid al the end of each accounting year. 489 250
(€) The amount of further Inlerest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, unlil such dale when the interest dues above are aclually paid lo the smiall enlerprise, for the purpose 250 284
of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Developmenl Acl, 2008.
Trade payable ageing:
As at 31 March 2025
|Particulars Not Dus* Qutstanding for following years from due date of payment Tatal
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 years
(1) Undisputed dues - MSE 6,002 2,080 - 5 - 8,112
(i} Undisputed dues - Others 32,851 4,979 85 203 373 38,581
Dispuled dues - MSE 502 567 - : - 1,069
(iv}) Dispuled dues - Others 2 = = e .
Total 39,385 7,626 as 293 373 47,762
* Includes unbilled trade payables amounling lo INR 7,628 lakhs.
As a1 31 March 2024
Particulars. Not Due* Outstanding for followlng years from due date of payment Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2:3 years Mare than 3 years
i) Undispuled dues - MSE 3,657 1.169 . Q - 4,826
i) Undisputed dues - Others 15.838 7,799 B54 375 - 24,866
(iii) Dispuled dugs - MSE - - - - - -
iv) Dispuled dues - Olhers = = 2] E - -
Total 19,495 8,968 854 375 - 29,692

* Includes unbilled trade payables amounting to INR 2,128 lakhs.




Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless olherwise slaled)

Note 23: Other current financial liabilities

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Employee relaled payables®
Deposils from vendors/ sub-contractors™*
Payable for capital goods

571 398
1,119 -

19 11

1,709 409

* Refer nole 42 for salary payable lo related parties.

** Represents deposits laken from certain vendors/ sub-contractors of the Company lowards performance of the contract. The same are interest free and are

refundable to the vendors/ sub-contractor as per the schedule mentioned in the conlract,

Note 24: Other current liabilities

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Total

Contract liability (Refer note 50) 4,400 14,759
Advance from cuslomers - revenue received in advance (Refer nole 50) 2,335 201
Slalutory dues payable 333 2468

7,068 15,206

Note 25: Provisions

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Non-current

Provision for warranty 46 59
Provision for gratuity (refer note 38) 313 222
359 281
Current
Provision for foreseeable losses 395 798
Provision for warranty 13 19
Provision for gratuity (refer note 38) 60 31
Provision for compensated absences (refer note 38) 270 211
738 1,059 |
Note 25.1: Movement in provision for foreseeable losses
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balance al he beginning of lhe year 798 1,458
Recognised during the year 89 116
Utilised/reversed during the year {492) (776)
Balance at the end of the year 395 798

In case of contracts, when il is probable that total conlract costs will exceed lolal conlracl revenue, Ihe expecled loss (foreseeable loss) is recognised as an expense

immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Note 25.2 : Movement in provision for warranty (current and non current):

Particulars

Recognised during the year

Utilised/reversed during the year
Balance al the end of the year

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
78 94
2 47
(21) (63)
59 78

‘ Balance al the beginning of lhe year

The Company has made provision for expenses expected to be incurred during defecl liability period which are in the nature of assurance warranly. The Company

| expects to incur the related expendilure over the defect liability period.

Note 26: Current tax liabilities

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Income lax liabilities (nel of advance laxes paid - INR 683 lakhs as al 31 March 2025 and INR
1,283 lakhs as at 31 March 2024)

3,599

1,791

3,500

1,791
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Vikran Engineering Limited {formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise slaled)

MNote 27: Revenue from operations

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

Sale of services:

Income from enaineering, procurement and construction (EPC) services® 91,182 77,669

Other operaling revenue:

Liabilities (project related) no longer required lo be paid, writlen back 266

Reversal of pravision towards foreseeable losses on conlracls (net) 403 660
91,585 78,595

“Note: Refer note 50 for additional details.

MNote 28: Other income

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Interest income on:

-on bank deposils 496 329
- on Income tax refund 3 -
-an |oan lo a related parly 18 -
Other non operaling Income:
Pravisionsiliabilities no longer required wrilten back (nel) 127 209
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (nel) 0 -
Gain on mutual fund investments (on sale and fair value changes) T 10
Miscellaneous Income 2 1
651 549
Mote 29: Cost of malerials consumed (including stores and spares)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Cost of malerials consumed (Refer nole 13) 48,368 38,496
Total 48,368 38,496
Reconciliation of cost of materials consumed :
Opening stock 4,986 2101
Opening slack in transit a7 1,465
Add: Purchases during the year (net) 49,289 40,003
Less: closing stock o . 5,994 4,986
Less: closing stock in transil - a7
48,368 38,496
Note 30: Project related expense
Parliculars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Sub-conlracting charges 14,355 12,780
Technical consullancy charges 629 2,813
Plant and machinery hire charges (Refer note 39) 238 328
Transpariaticn charges 280 325
Loading and unloading charges 392 302
Survey cosls = 113
Warranly expenses 2 47
Olher project related expense 146 89
16,042 16,777
Note 31: Employee benefils expense
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

laries and bonus (including direclors’ ion) 6,027 5,304
Contribution lo provident and other funds (Refer note 38) 263 229
Staff welfare expenses 313 183
Graluity expense (Refer note 38) 101 7
Compensaled absences expense (Refer note 38) 59 103
6,763 5,896




Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Motes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unfess othenwise staled)

Note 32: Finance cosls

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

Interest expense on:

31 March 2025

- borrowings carrled at amortised cost 3448 23411
- non-convertible debenlures 196 =
- delayed payment of stalulory dues and shortfall in payment of advance income tax 390 214
- lease liabilities (Refer note 39) 1" 9
- delayed payment to micre and small enterprises vendors 256 176
Other borroving costs® 1057 657

5,358 3,397
*primarily includes loan processing charges, guaraniee charges and olher charges.
Note 33: Depreciation and riisati p
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Depreciation on praperty, plant and equipmenl (Refer note 4A) 210 243
Depreciation on right of use assets (Refer nole 6) 77 86
Amortisation on Intangible assets (Refar note 5) 10 76
297 405

Note 34: Other expenses
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024

Eleclricity expense 84 56
Rent expanse (Refer note 39) 402 324
Repairs and maintenance - bulldings 5 4
Repairs and maintenance - others 199 257
Security charges. 344 335
Insurance 247 236
Rales and laxes 547 342
Vehicle hire charges (Refer note 39) 364 346
Auditor's remuneration {Refer note 35 below) 86 30
Travelling and conveyance 388 304
Communicalion 28 24
Consulting and professional fees 396 805
Sile expenses 102 139
Donation 1 50
Printing and stationary 58 50
Loss an disposal of Property Plant and Equipment (net) 0 0
Bank charges 158 95
Business prometion expenses 56 52
Corporale soclal responsibility expenses (Refer note 43) 119 64
Allowance for expecled credil loss (Refer note 14.2) 655 517
Loss allowance on conlraci assels 47 =
Miscellaneous expenses 123 66
4,389 4,096

Note 35: Auditor's rem tion (excluding goods and service tax)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

As statutory auditor®

Audit 60 30
Cerlifications 26 -

| Total 86 30

* Excluding INR 100 lakhs (31 March 2024 . Nil) towards deliverables pertaining to the proposed Inilial Public Offering (IPO) of the equity shares of the Company.




Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 36: Current tax and deferred lax

(a) Income tax expense through the statement of profil and loss

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Current tax:
Current lax on profits for the year 3,753 2876
Adjustments for tax of prior years 78 =

3,831 2,876
Deforred tax credit:
In respeat of current year originalion and reversal of temporary differences (593) (284)
Total 3,238 2,592
(b) Income tax on other comprehensive income
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Deferred lax credil / {expense)
Total

29

~

29

(c) Movement of income tax assets / (liabilities) - net

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Opening balance {net) {1,403} (238)
Tax assels acquired pursuvant lo scheme of amalgamation (Refer note 55) (28) -
Taxes paid during the year {nel) 2,468 1,910
Income tax charge during the year (3.753) (2,876)
Adjustment for lax of prior years (78) -
Interest on shortfall in payment of advance income laxes (387) (199)
Income lax refund received during the year (233) -
Closing balance (3,415) (1,403}
Nen-current lax assels {net) (Refer nole 11) 185 388
Current tax liabilities (Refer note 25) 3,599 1,791
clusing balance (3,415) (1,403)
{d) Reconcillation of tax and the ing profit multiplied by India's licable tax rate:

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

31 March 2025

Accounting profit before Income tax 11,019 10,077
Applicable income lax rate (in %) 25.17% 25.17%
Compuled expecled tax expense 2773 2,536
Tax effect of amount which are not (taxable)! deductible in calculating taxable income 980 340
Adjustments for lax of prior years 78 -
Deferred fax on origination/reversal of temporary dilferences (593) (284)
Tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 3,238 2,592
Note 37: Earnings per equity share

Particulars Year anded Year ended

31 March 2024

Net prefit allributable to equity shareholders for the year [a]

Weighted average number of equily shares for basic eamings per share [b)
Add: Effect of split of equily shares (Refer nole (i) below)

Add: Effact of bonus shares issue (Refer nole (i) below)

Tolal weighted average number of equily shares for basic earnings per share [c]
Dilulive potential equity shares

‘Welghted average number of equily shares for diluled earnings per share [d]
Basic earnings per share (in INR) [a/c]

Diluted earnings per share (in INR} (a/d]

Face value per share (in INR)

7,781 7.485
3.50,439 298,518
31,53,953 26,686,661
17,52,19,618 14,92,58,962
17,87,24,010 15,22,44,141
17,87,24,010 15,22,44,141
4.35 4,92

4.35 4.92

1.00 1.00

Notes:

(i) Pursuant to a resolution passed in exlraordinary general meeting of the Company daled 12 August 2024, sharehelders have approved splil of each equity share having face value

of INR 10 each into equily shares of face value of INR 1 each (the "split*).

{iiy The shareholders of the Company, in its annual general meeling daled 26 August 2024, have approved the issuance of bonus shares to the equity shareholders in the ralio of 50

equity shares for each share held as al record date fixed as 23 Augusi 2024.

(iii) As required under Ind AS 33 - *Eamings Per Share”, the effect of split and bonus is adjusted for the purpose of computing earnings per share for all the period pres'en!ad

relrospectively.
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Vikean Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Privale Limited)
Notes to tho financial slatements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All armounts in INR lakhs, unless alhervise statad)
Note 38: Employee benefits

1. Short term employee benefils

Al ammoyae banerls payable wholly within twalve months of rendering Ihe service are classified as short lerm employee benefils. Benelits such as salaries, incentives and allowances, short lerms

p elc., and the exp d cost of banus, ex-gratia are recognized in the year in which the employee renders the relaled services

2. Long term employee benefits
(1) Defined benefit plan

(a) Gratuity (unfunded)

The Company provides for gldlully for emp oyees in Indm as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a yaar of § years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of
gratuity payable on is Ihe employees last drawn basic salary per monih computed propartionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service.

The fallowing lables summaries the components of nat benefits expense recognized in the slatement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income and the amount recognized in the balance sheet

for the defined benefil plan,

Change in tho present value of the defined benefil obligation:
Openling defined benefit obligation

Interest cost

Currenl service cost

Benefils paid

Actuarial (gain)f loss on obligation

Closing defined banefit obligation

Amount recognized In the balance sheet;
Present value of dafined benefil obligation al the end of the year
Net liability recognized in the balance sheet

Current
Non-cument
Total
gnized in the of profit and loss
Current service cost
Interast cosl
Nel exp gnized in the of profil and loss
ized In the other prehensive income:
Actuannl (gain) loss on defined benefit obligations.
Nel expl ized in the total prehensive income

Breakup of actuarlal loss/ (galn)

Due to change In financial assumpftions
Due lo experisnce adjustmens

Due te demographic assumptions

Actuarial assumptions used
Discount rate (% par annum)

Salary growih rate (% pér annum)

Demographlc assumptions used:

Mortalily rale

Relirement age (in years)
Average future servica (in years)
Adtrition rale (% per annum)

These 5 wele by lhe wilh the

As al
31 March 2025

Asal
31 March 2024

253 185
17 13
B84 64

(30) (18)
49 9

373 253

3713 253

ars 253
60 3

313 222

373 253

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

84 64
17 13
101 7
Year ended Year onded
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
48 ]
49 9
g 7
40 1
= 1
49 9
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
6.82% 7.11%
6.00% 6.00%
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

bends of relavant econnmlc markels and hat have terms lo malurily approximaling (o the terms of tha relaled ebligation. Olher assumptions are based on

Indian Assured Lives Mortality
({2012-14) Ultimate table

58
19
2.00% to 10.00%

Indian Assured Lives Mortalily
{2012-14) Ullimate lable

58

2.00% to 10.00%

Discount faclors are determined close lo each year nnd b)‘ mlerence o govammem

Tha

eslimata of futura salary increase cansldered in acluarial valuation take account of inflalion, seniority, promolion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand Ln the employmanl markel.




Vikran Engi ing Limited (| Iy, Vikran Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amourits in INR lakhs, unless-olhenvise slatad)

SenshHivily analysis

The raporied figures are ilive Lo the acluarial ions. Tha changss lo Ihe defined banelit obligations for increase | decrease of 1% from assumed discoun rale, salary growth rate and allrilion
rale are given below. In presanting (he sensillvily analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has baen calculated using lhe projected unit credil methed at the end of the reporting year,
which is the same method as applied in calculaling the defined benefit obligation as recognized in the balance sheel. The sensitivily analysis is based on a change in one assumplion while not changing
all other assumplions. This analysis may nol be representative of the actual change In the defined benefit obligation as It is unlikely that the change in the assumptions would occur in isolation of one
anolher since some of the assumptions may be co-related. The folloving table summarizes the effects of changes in Ihese actuarial assumplions on the defined benefit liability at year-end. There vas
no change in the methods and assumptions used In preparing the sensilivity analysis from previous year.

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Intrease by 1% Decrease by 1% Increase by 1% Decrease by 1%

Discount rate

Change In the definad benefit obligation (29} 34 (22) 26
Salary growth rale

Change in he defined benelit obligation 36 (31) 28 (24)
Attrition rate

Change In the defined benefit obligation 0 (0) 1 (1
The defined benefit obligations shall mature after yaar end as follows @

As at As al
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

1st following year 59.68 31
2nd following year 34.44 9
3rd fellowing year 686,78 28
Ath fellowing year 1428 N
5th foflowing year 19.45 12
6 years and onvards uplo 10 years 98,61 73
Other information

Number of active members. 738 674
Walghled average duration of the projecled benelil obligation for gratuily (In years) 14 15
Adjusted average fulure sarvice (in years) 19 14

(b) Compensated absences

Compensaled absencas is a non-funded defined banefil scheme. The obligation for leave enlillement is recognized in the same manner as graluiy.

Tha expenss lowards ahsence ised in the of profit and foss for 31 March 2025 is INR 59 lakhs and for 31 March 2024 |s INR 103 lakhs.
Amount of actuaral loss r In other prehensive incoma for 31 March 2025 is INR 67 lakhs and for 31 March 2024 is INR 19 lakhs,

Amounl recognised in balance sheel as al 31 March 2025: INR 270 lakhs and 31 March 2024: INR 211 lakhs.

(1) Defined contribution plan

Ths Company pays fixed conlrbution lo the providant fund, employee’s state insurance corporalion entities and labour welfare fund in relation lo several slate plans and insurances for Individual
emplayees. This fund is administared by the respective Govarnment autharities and the Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay contributions In additien ta its fixed contribulions, which
are recognised as an expense In the year (hat related employee services are recaived.

The Company’s contribution to defined contribution plan as employee benefit exp: Is as below.

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Emptoyer’s conlribution towards Provident Fund (PF) 253 229
Employer’s ibution towards Employee’s Stale Corporation (ESIC) 0 o
Employers contribulion lowards Labour wellare fund (LWF) 0 (]

263 229




Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

Note 39: Leases

The Company's leased assels primarily consists of leases for office premises having different lease terms to conduct its business in the ordinary course.

The Company has discounted lease payments using the incremenlal borrowing rale for measuring lease liabllities and accordingly recagnised ROU assets, after adjusting any prepaid
lease rentals.

The lease arrangements with lease lerm of 12 months ar less, and the leases of low-value assels have been excluded from measurement of lzase liability and ROU assets. The lease
payments relaled lo these arrangements are charged lo slalement of profit and loss under the respective head.

The Company does not have any major lease reslrictions and commitment towards variable renl as per the conlracl.
Right-of-use assets:

(i) The net carrying value of right-of-use assets as at 31 March 2025 amounls to INR 150 lakhs and 31 March 2024: INR 95 lakhs and the movement therecf has been disclosed
separately in nole 6 to the financial statements.

Lease liabllities:

(i) The movement in lease liabilities is as follows :

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Opening balance 74 170
Add : Addition during the year 169 -
Add : Interest on lease liabilities 1 9
Less : Paymenl of lease liabililies (88) (104)
Add : Other adjustments (14) (1)
Closing balance 152 74
Non current 80 a8
Current 72 36

{ii) The table below provides details regarding the contraclual maturities of lease liabililies on undiscounted basis

Particulars As al As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
0-1 year 82 50
1-5 years 91 29
5 years and above - &

The Company has recognised the following in the statement of profit and loss:

(i) Deprecialion expense from right-of-use assets of 31 March 2025: INR 77 lakhs and 31 March 2024: INR 86 lakhs.
{ii) Interest on lease liabilities of 31 March 2025: INR 11 lakhs and 31 March 2024: INR 9 lakhs. (Refer note 32).

(iif) Expense amounling lo 31 March 2025: INR 1,004 lakhs and 31 March 2024; INR 998 lakhs relaled to leases of low-value assets and leases with less than twelve months of lease
term. These have been included under plant and machinery, vehicle hire charges and rent expenses (Refer notes 30 and 34).

Note 40 : There are no capilal commitments as at the end of reporting years.

Note 41: Contingent liabilities
As al As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for):

a) Income lax demand in respect of earlier years under dispute* 405 415
b) Goods and service tax demand in respect of earlier years under dispute* 5,993 6,036
¢) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt 15 15

*Future cash autflows in respect of above malters are determinable only on receipt of judgements / decisions pending at various forums / authorilies. The management, based on their
assessmenl, does nol expecl these claims lo succeed and accordingly, no provision has been recognised in the financlal statements. These amount represents gross demand raised
by the authorities (including interest) and the amount paid under protest is not charged to the stalemenl of profit and loss by the Company.

d) During 2021-22, a case was filed by a Governmenl investigation agency alleging involvement of lhe Company, its two employees and a public afficer for alleged involvemenl with
respect to a contract far securing undue favors. The Company is in the process of filing an applicalion with he appropriate forum for dropping this maller against the company, due to
its non-involvement and absence of any charges being framed against it till date.
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Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limiled)
Motes to the financial stalemenls as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amiounts in INR lakhs, unless othervise stated)

Note 42: Related party disclosure
(Disclosed ta the extent lransactions have taken place and where conlrol exist).

A) Names of related parties

1) Key managerial personnel (KMP)/ Directors

Mr. Rakesh Markhedkar - Chairman and Managing Direclor (CMD) and Promoter

Mr. Avinash Markhedkar - Whale Time Director (w.e.f. 17 June 2024) and Promoler (w.e.l. 24 September 2024)
Mr. Nakul Markhedkar - Whole Time Director (w.e.l. 17 June 2024) and Promoler (w.e.l. 24 Seplember 2024)
Mr. Dibyendu Ray - Chief Operating Officer (w.e.f. 23 May 2024)

Mr. Ashish Bahety - Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Kajal Rakhollya - Company Secretary (w.e.f. 06 May 2024)

Mrs. Prili Savla - Independent Director (w.e.f. 24 Seplember 2024)

Mr. Rakesh Sharma - Independent Director (w.e.f, 24 September 2024)

Mr. Arun Unhale - Independent Direclor (w.e.l. 24 Seplember 2024)

ii) Relatives/close mambers of the family of Key managerial personnel (KMP)
Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar - Wife of Chairman and Managing Direclor
Mr. Vipul Markhedkar - Son of Chalrman @nd Managing Director

lif) Entities having significant influence over the Company (Refer note 55)
Deb Suppliers & Traders Private Limited (Promoter) (Upto 23 August 2024)
Farista Financial Consullants Private Limited (Promoler) (Uplo 23 August 2024)

iv) Entities over which Directors/KMP have significant influence

SEU India Performance Excellence LLP

Vikran Engineering & Exim Privale Limiled - Employees Group Graluily Fund
Swarnayug Developers LLP

Rakesh Markhedkar HUF

Power and Conlral Transformer Industries Private Limiled

Vikran Global Infraprojects Private Limited

B) Transactions with related parties :

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

1(A). Sub-contracting and other charges
SEU India Performance Excellence LLP

1(B). Revenue from operations (including billing)
Swarnayug Developers LLP

2. Dividend paid
Deb Suppliers & Traders Private Limited
Farisla Financlal Consultants Privale Limited
Mr. Rakesh Markhedkar
Mr. Vipul Markhedkar
Mr. Nakul Markhedkar
Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar
Vikean Glabal Infraprojects Private Limited

3. Rent paid *
Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar

4. Lodan/Advance taken:
Mr, Rakesh Markhedkar
Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar
Mr, Nakul Markhedkar
Mr. Vipul Markhedkar
Rakesh Markhedkar HUF

5. Loan/Advance repaid:
Mr. Rakesh Markhedkar
Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar
Mr. Nakul Markhedkar
Mr. Vipul Markhedkar
Rakesh Markhedkar HUF
Vikran Global Infraprojects Private Limited #

6. Loan given:
Power and Control Transformers Industries Private Limited

7. Interest income on loan:
Power and Conlrol Transformers Industries Private Limited

85

223
27
27

425
299

88
105
107

425
299

88
105
107

189

203

915

196
185

297
401

94
1777
105

297
401
94
177
105
2119




Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts In INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

B) Transactions with related parties (continued) :

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

8. Interest expense:
Mr., Rakesh Markhedkar
Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar
Mr, Nakul Markhedkar
Mr, Vipul Markhedkar
Rakesh Markhedkar HUF
Vikran Global Infraprojects Private Limited

9. Rei L of exp i d by
Mr. Rakesh Markhedkar
Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar
Mr. Nakul Markhedkar
Mr. Vipul Markhedkar
Mr. Avinash Markhedkar

10. Exp i d by the Company on behalf of
Mr. Rakesh Markhedkar®
Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar
Mr, Nakul Markhedkar
Mr. Vipul Markhedkar

11. Remuneration (short term employce benefits) to KMP and their relatives/ close members of family of KMP
Mr. Rakesh Markhedkar
M, Avinash Markhedkar
Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar
Mr. Nakul Markhedkar
Mr. Vipul Markhedkar
Mr. Ashish Bahley
Mr. Dibyendu Ray
Mrs. Kajal Rakholiya

12. Director’s sitling fee
Mrs. Prili Savla
Mr. Rakesh Sharma
Mr. Arun Unhale

13. Salary advance glven
Mr. Rakesh Markhedkar
Mrs. Kanchan Markhadkar
Mr. Vipul Markhedkar

14, Salary advance recovery
Mr, Rakesh Markhedkar
Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar
Mr. Vipul Markhedkar

DN

266
7
264
21
138
96
69

44
50
50

44
50
50

21

10

148

-— o e

248
67
253
199
&7
42

* The figures are based on contraclual arrangement executed and does nol Include the impacl of Ind AS.

A lneludes INR 57 fakhs {31 March 2024: Nil) lowards expense incurred on behall of promoter selling shareholder, which has been incurred by the Company towards proposed Initial Public

Offering (IPQ) of the equity shares of the Company.
# Amount for year ended 31 March 2024 includes INR 794 lakhs sellled through Issue of equily shares.

A% As per contraclual arrangement, billing is done amounting lo Nil during the year ended 31 March 2025 (31 Maich 2024 INR 915 lakhs).
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Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

C) Balances outstanding at the year-end

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Trade payables
SEU India Performance Excellence LLP - 10

Trade receivables
Swarnayug Developers LLP 148 166

Advance to suppliers

SEU India Performance Excellence LLP 1 -
Loan given
Power and Control Transformers Industries Private Limited 204 -

Other financial assets
Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited Employees Group Gratuity Fund 0 0

Mr. Rakesh Markhedkar 57 -

Salary payable

Mr. Rakesh Markhedkar 83 4
Mr. Avinash Markhedkar 6 3
Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar 42 6
Mr. Nakul Markhedkar 16 6
Mr. Vipul Markhedkar 6
Mr. Ashish Bahety 4

Mr. Dibyendu Ray
Mrs. Kajal Rakholiya

== th = N
[

Notes:

(i) Transactions with related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act, as applicable. The outstanding balances at year end
are unsecured and due fo be seltled for consideration in cash / cash equivalent.

(i) Following related parties have provided corporate guarantee/personal guarantee to the bankers towards cash credit facilities and
working capital term loans availed by the Company as disclosed in Note 20 to the financial statements.

- Deb Suppliers and Traders Private Limited (Upto 23 August 2024)

- Farista Financial Consultants Privale Limited (Upto 23 August 2024)
- Rakesh Markhedkar

- Avinash Markhedkar

- Kanchan Markhedkar

- Nakul Markhedkar

- Vipul Markhedkar

(i) The remuneration to the KMPs does not includes the provision made for gratuity and compensated absences, as they are determined
on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole.

(iv) The Company executes certain projects through special purpose vehicles (SPV) which are not body corporales. These SPVs are
treated as an extension of the Company itself as in substance the Company assumes all the risk and rewards related to such
arrangemenls including managing operations of such projecls. Hences such SPVs are not considered as related party for disclosure
purpose in this note.

(v) During the current year, pursuant lo approval by National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) of the scheme of amalgamation of the
Company with Farista Financial Consullants Private Limited and Deb suppliers and Traders Private Limited (collectively referrred to as
‘erstwhile promoters'), these erstwhile promoter companies have been amalgamated with the Company and the shares held by these two
entities have been reduced from the share capital of the Company and in-turn new shares of the Company have been issued to the
shareholders of erstwhile promoters which included Mr. Rakesh Markhedkar. Also refer note 55.
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Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Notes to the financiat statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
{All amounts in INR lakhs, unless othenvise staled)

Note 43: Corporate Soclal Responsibllity (CSR)

As per Section 135 of the Companias Act, 2013 (lhe "Acl’), a Company, meeting the applicability thresheld, needs to spend at least 2% of ils average net profil for the immediately preceding three
financial years on CSR aclivities, A CSR Commillee has heen formed by the Company as per the Acl. Following are the details required as per the Act

Details of CSR activities undertaken by the Company;

Particulars. Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
a) Gross amounl required lo ba spent during the year 119 64
b} Amounl spproved by lhe Board to be spent during the year 119 64

¢} Amount spent during Lhe year:

1) Constructionfacquisition of any assel . .
if) ©n purposes other than (1) above 119 B4

Total amount unspent : !

Motes :
i) Mature of CSR activities includes social welfare, economic aclivities for education of poor disable children and woamen, vocational lraining courses, child development programmes, ele,

il) The Company does nol have any ongoing profects as al the end of reporting years.
ili) During the year, there is no related party transaction in relation lo CSR expenditure.
iv) There is no unspent amount of CSR aclivities as at the end of reporting years.
HNote 44; Segment information
The Company Is principally engaged in a single business segment viz, Engineering, Procurement and Construction (EPC) services. The Company's Chiel Operaling Decision Maker (CODM) monitor and

review Ihe operaling resull of the Company prepared on he basis of financial Information of EPC business, as a whale, Thus, as defined In Ind AS 108 “Operating Segmenlts®, the Company's entire
business falls under this one operational segment,

(a) Revenue from sale of services on a geographic basis:

i Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
India 91,182 77,669
Outside India - =
Total 91,182 77,669
(b) Revenue from sale of services derived from major customers Is as follows:
Year ended Year ended
Particul
el 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Ravenue from lop flive s 63,665 43,660
(c) For lhe year ended 31 March 2025, threa (31 March 2024: three) customers, individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenue from operations.
{d) Non-current assels”
Particulars At Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
India 241 2494
Qulside India - -
* Excluding financial assets and lax assels.
Note 45: Dividend
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Dividend on equily shares pald during the year:
Final dividand for the previous year paid in current year 378 392
378 392

The dividend paid by the Company is in compliance with the Section 123 of Act.
No income lax consequences are expected lo arise as a result of this Iransaction al the Company level,

Note 46: Code on Soclal Security, 2020

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relaling lo employee benefits during employment and ﬁusl L benefils received Presidential assent In September 2020, Tha Code has bean
published in the Gazelte of India, Howaver, tha dale on which the Code will come into effect has not been nolified. The Company will assess the Impact of the Code when It comes inlo effect and will
record any relaled Impact In the year In which the Code becomes effective.




Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless othenwise slated)

Note 47: Fair value measurements

(U}

(ii)

(iii)

Fair value hierarchy

The fair values of lhe financial assels and liabilities are included at the amaunt that would be received lo sell an assel or paid to {ransfer a liability in an orderly
Iransaclion between markel participant at the measuremenl date,

This section explains the judgments and estimates made In determining the fair values of the financial instruments thal are (a) recognised and measured al fair value
and (b) measured al amorlised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial slatements, To provide an indicalion aboul the reliability of the inpuls used
in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each
level follows underneath the lable.

Level 1 : Prices (unadjusled) in aclive markets for financial instruments,

Level 2: The falr value of financial instruments that are not raded in an active market is determined using valualion lechniques which maximise the use of
observable markel data and rely as litile as possible an entity-specific estimates. Il all significant inpuls required lo fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: Il ane or more of lhe significant inpuls is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
Valuation technique used to determine fair value
Specific valuation techniques used to value financlal instruments include:

- the use of quoled markel prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
- the use of discounted cash flow for fair value at amortised cost

Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed

As at 31 March 2025

Carrying value
Fair value hierarchy of

Particulars Financial assets [ financial assels and
liabilities at fair liabilitles measured at
value through profit [Fatalcxryij Naila FVTPL
or loss (FVTPL)

Amortised cost

Financial assets

Investment in mulual funds - 113 113 Leval 1
Trade receivables 63,432 - 63,432 -
Loans ’ 203 - 203 -
Cash and cash equivalents 250 - 250 -
Other bank balances 6,457 - 6,457 -
Other financial assets 3221 - 3,221 -

Financial liabilities

Lang term borrowings 3,192 - 3,192 -
Short lerm borrowings 24,102 s 24,102 -
Lease liabilities 152 - 152 -
Trade payables 47,762 - 47,762 -
Other financial liabilities 1,709 - 1,709 -

As at 31 March 2024

Carrying value
Fair value hierarchy of

Particulars Financlal assets / financial assets and

Amortised cost Batillae ot falr Total carrying value liabllitles measured at

value through profit FVTPL
or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets
Investment in mutual funds - a0 90 Level 1
Trade receivables 46,390 - 46,390 -
Cash and cash equivalenls B - 8 -
Other bank balances 4,987 - 4,987 -
Olher financial assels 2,879 - 2,879 -

Financial liabilities

Long lerm borrowings 1,070 - 1,070 -
Short lerm borrowings 17,269 - 17,269 -
Leasa liabilities 74 - 74 -
Trade payables 29,692 - 29,692 -
Other financial liabililies 408 - 409 -

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

The carrying amounts of trade receivable, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, securily deposits, rade payables and other current financial liabilities
are considered lo be the same as their fair values, due lo thelr short term nature.

Falr value of elher non-current financial assets approximate their carrying amounls due to the fact thal il is estimated by discounling fulure cash flows using market
rales of inferest applicable as at reporting dates.

Fair value of long term barrowings approximate their carrying amounts due to the fact that long term borrowings are measured at amortised cost using the floating
ralesffixed rales of interesl, which in lurn are based on Interest rates prevailing in the markel for similar transaclion.

Fair value of financial assets measured at FVTPL

The fair values of invesiments in mulual fund units is based on the net assel value ('NAV') as slated by the issuers of these mulual fund unils in the published
slatements as al lhe reporting dates.

There are no transfers in eilher level during the reporting years.

There are no financial assets/ liabilities which are measured at falr value through olher comprehensive income.




Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Enginegring Private Limited)
Notes to the financlal statemants as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unfess othenwise stated)

Note 48: Financial risk management

Is carried out by &

The Company aclivities espose It 1o interast rate risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order lo minimisa any adverse effects on Whe financial p the G y's risk
corporate uaasnry and l:ﬁrpm’ﬂlﬁ finance department under policias approved by the board of direclors and top management. The Cnmpany; treasury idenlifies, avaluules and mitigates financial risks in close
lan willy the C ing units. The baard provides guidance for overall the risk management, as well as policies covering spacific dreas

This note explains the sources of eisk which the enbly is primarly exposed (o and how the enlity manages the risk and the ralated impact in the binancial staternents.

Credit risk
Credit fisk Is the risk of financial loss arising from counterparty fallure to repay or servica dues according to the contraclual terms and obligaty Credit risk of baoth, the dirac! risk of default and tha
risk of dularioration of i i as well as ian of risks. Credil risk is controlled by analysing eredit limits and credil worlhiness of the customer on cantinuous basis Lo whom the credil has been

aranted afler oblaining necassary approvals for credit. The financial instruments that are subact to concentration of creditrisk principally conslst of trade recelvables and cash and bank equivalants.

Bank deposits ara placed with raputad banks / financial institutions. Hence, there is no significant credit risk on such fixed deposits. Mutual fund investments are made in plans of renowned assel management
campany only. The credd risk associaled with bank, security deposits and mutual fund investments s relatively low.

Other financial assets includes deposits recelvable, Interest accrued on deposiis and other racelvables. These receivables are monitored on a periodic basis for assassing any significant risk af non-recoverability
of dues and provision is crealed accordingly,

Trade receivables are typically unsécured. Credit risk on tade receivables is limited as the Company's cuslomer base substantially includes governmenl promoted undsltakmgs and pubiic sector undertakings.
Aso, generally the company does nol enter into sales ransaction with customars having credit loss histary. I addition, rade receivable balances are monitared on an en-going basis with the resull that the
Company's exposure lo bad debls is not significant. Tha portion of the payments retained by tha customer until final contract setlement is not considered a significant financing component since [l is usually
intended to provide customer with a form of security for Company's remaining perfermance as specified under the contract, which is consistent with the industry practice. The Campany does nol require collateral
Iri respect of its irade receivables, An impalrment analysis is performed at each reporting dale uslng a provision malrix to measure ECL. The provision rates are based on days past due. The calculation reflects
the prabability-weighled outcome, the time value of money and le and thal is available at the reporting date aboul pasl evenls, current conditions and farecas!s of fulure
wcanomic conditions, If any. In case of disputad trade recelvables, Ihe Company pr.-dn:rns individual credit risk assessment and creales expected credit loss allowance (ECL) based on intarnal assessment for
such cases

The following table provides information abaut the ECL rate for trade recelvables :

As al 31 March As al 31 March
2025 2024

Agelng brackel of trade recaivables

Uplo 90 days 0.10% lo 1.00% 0.10% lo 1.00%
91 to 180 days: 2.50% 10 4.50% 2.50% to 4.50%
181 lo 365 days 7.00% to 11.00% | 8.00% to 12.00%

More than 365 days 25.00% 10 80.00% | 25.00% to 80.00%

a} For reconciliation of loss allowance on rade receivables, refer note 14.1.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management Implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the avalabilily of funding (o meet ubligaions whea due. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
businesses, Company maintains flesibility in funding by maintaining sufficiénl cash and bank balances avaiable to meel the working capital requirements. Managemant monitors rolling forecasts of the
Company's byuidity posifion on the basis of expacted cash flows.

The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, and the cash flow that is generaled from operations. The Company believes thal the warking capital Is sufficiant lo moel #ls current

requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived. The Company closely monitars its liquidity pasition and malntsins adequale source of funding.

The Company also participates In supply chain financing arrangsmant (SCF ) which under which suppliers may elect to receive early payment of thelt invaice from by factoring their receivables.

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities

The table below provides dslails regarding tha

contractual maluritias of lease liabilites.

financial liabilities al Ihe reporting date based on the contractual undiscountad payments. Refer note 39 for

As al 31 March 2025 Carrying amount [
Parliculars Amounlt Repayabla on demand Upto 1 year Belwaen 1 -3 years yond 3 years Total
Financlal liabilities
Borrowings. 27,294 13,015 11,140 32 27 27,294
Trade payatles’ 47,762 - 45,317 2445 - 47,762
Other financial llablities 1,709 - 1,709 Lo = 1,709
Total 76,765 13,015 58,166 5,557 27 76,765
As al 31 March 2024 Carrying amount Conltractual maluritias
Particulars Amount Repayable on demand Upto 1 year Between 1-3years | Beyond 3 years Tolal
Financial liabllities
Barrowings 18,339 11,6897 5,592 830 220 18,339
Trade payables® 29,692 - 27,424 2,568 - 29,692
Other financial lisbiilies 409 - 409 = - 409
Total 48,440 11,697 33,125 3,398 220 48,440

*In the balance sheel, rade payables are classified based on tha oparating cycle of the Company.




Vikran Engineerlng Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Frivate Limited)
Notes to the financlal statemants as al and for the year anded 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise slated)

C  Markelrisk

Markel risk is the risk that changes in markel prices, such as interest rates and equity prices will affect the Company's income or tha value of its holdings of financial inslruments. The objective af market risk

managemant is 1o manage and control markel risk exp within F wihils the ralurn. The sensilivily analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on the
carrying value of post-employ bengfit obli P ians and on lhe fi ial assets and liabilities. The sensitivity of the refevant profit and (oss item Is the effect of the assumed changes In respective
markel risks.

Interast rata risk is Ihe risk thal the fait value or the fulure cash Nows of 8 financial instrumeant will fluctuale because of changes in macket interest rate nsks. The Company's exposure to risk of changes in markel
interesl rates primardy to the Company's long-term debt obligations. For the Company the inlerest risk arises mainly from interes! bearing borrowings which are al floaling interest rates. To mitigate interast rale

risk, the Company closely monitors market interest and optimise borrowing mix / compaosition.

~Inlerest rale exposure
The exposure of the Company's borcowing lo inlerest rate changes al the end of the reporting year are as follows:

=i As at hAs al
2 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Variable rale borrowing 16,757 15,193
Fixed rale borrowings 10,537 3,146
Total 27,294 18,339

- Interast rate sensltivity
A change of 50 bps ininterest rales would have following impact on profit before tax-and equity (holding all other variatiles constant)

Particulars

As al
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

50 bps increase would decrease the profit before tax/equily by*
50 bps decrease would increase the profit before taequity by*

(84)
84

(76)
76

* Senshivity Is calculaled based on the assumption that amount sulstanding as al reporting dates were utlised during the year.

Mutual fund price risk

The value of unquated mulual fund Investments measured at falr value through profit and foss as at 31 March 2025 Is INR 113 lakhs (31 March 2024. INR 80 lakhs. A 10% change in valug for year ended 31

March 2025 would result in an impact of INR 11 lakhs (31 March 2024: INR 9 lakhs) on profil before lax and athar equity {holding all olher variables constant)

Note 43: Capilal management

The Company’s objeclives when managing capilal are to .
1. Saleguard thelr ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can confinue lo provide returns for shareholders and benelils for olher slakeholders, and
2. Maintain an optimal capital struclure o reduce Lhe cost of capital.

In arder to maintain of adjus the capital struclure, he Company may adjusl the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, relurn capilal o shareholdars, issua new shares, reduce debl or sell assels.

The Company maintains its capilal structura and makes adjustments, if required i the light of changes in ditions and the L of the finantial

; Consistenl with others in the

industry, the Company monitors its capital using the gearing ratio which is nal debt divided by equity and intends to manage oplimal gearing ratios. In arder lo achjeve this overall objective, the Company's capilal

managemenl, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial altached to the that define the capital structure requirements.

Tha gearing ratios are as lollows:

Particulars

As al 31 March

As at 31 March

2025 2024
Net debt (Tolal borrowings less cash and cash equivalents) 27,044 18,331
Total 48,787 29.129
Capiltal gearing ratlo 0.58 0.63




Vikran Engineering Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

50 : Disclosure as per Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

a) Reconciliation of revenue from sale of services wilh the contracted price

Year ended Year ended
Partioulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Contracted price 91,269 77,152
Addl (Less): Variable consideration (87) 517
Revenue from sale of services 91,182 77,669
b) Revenue based on performance obligations
Year ended Year ended
Sabahts 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
As services are rendered (over the period of lime) 91,182 77,669
Upon complelion of services (al a point in lime) - =
¢) Recognised revenue earned from:
Year ended Year ended
ki 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Relaled parties® - 550
Others 91,182 77,119
* As per contraclual arrangement, billing is done amaunting to Nil for the year ended 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024 : INR 915 lakhs) which has been disclosed in
transaction with relaled pariies.
d) Contract balances
Year ended As at
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Trade receivables (nel carrying value) 63,432 46,390
Conlract assels (unbilled work in progress) 46,637 28,916
Advance from customers 2,335 201
Conlracl liability* 4,400 14,759
* Revenue recognised during the year from contract liabilily is INR 11,060 lakhs (31 March 2024 : INR 8,731 lakhs).
e) Movement in contract assets and contract liability
Contract Contract liabllity
Particulars assets and customer
(gross) advances
Balance as on 01 April 2023 19,464 10,021
Mel increase/ (decrease) 9,452 4,939
Balance as on 01 April 2024 28,916 14,960
Nel increase/ (decrease) 17,768 (8,225)
Balance as on 31 March 2025 46,684 6,735

Note: Increase in conlract assels is primarily due to higher revenue recognilion as compared lo progress billing during the year in certain projecls, whereas reduction in
contract liabilities is due to lower progress billing as compared lo revenue recognition during the year in cerlain other projecls.

f) Cost to obtain or fulfil the contract:
(i) Amount of amortisation recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss during the year : Nil (31 March 2024: Nil).

(ii) Amount recognised as contract assets in relation to cost incurred for obtaining conlracl as al 31 March 2025 : Nil (31 March 2024: Nil).

g) In the normal course of business, the paymenl lerms contraclually agreed wilh the cuslomers ranges from 45 o 60 days excepl relenlion monies which are due after

the completion of the project as per the lerms of conlracl.
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51 Key analytical ratios (to the extent applicable} :

@

Particulars Numerator Denominater 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 Varlance Explanalion for variance in ratle by more
than 25%
Current ratio Currenl assels Curranl hbilties 1.52 1.37) 10.94% |Nat applicatile
Debt equily ratia Borrowings (currenl  and  non| Total equity 0.58 0.63] <7.34% | Not applicable
curranl)
Debt sarvice coverage ratio Met  profit  before  lax +|Principal and interes| 048 0.62 22 55% | Not applicable
depraclation, and amortisation +{rapsyment  of  long-term
Inerest expense on borowings  borowings
Relurn on equily (ROE) Net profit after taxes Average Sharehalders’ equity 20,50% 35.44% -42.16% | Reduction is primarly becausa in the curren|
year, t 5 equity has
significantly.
Fixed assels turnaver ratio Revanua from operalions Propert, plant end equipment 101.26 91.01 1.27% | Not applicable
Inventory tumover ratio COGS  + Project  related| Average Inventory 11.64 12.80 -9.04% | Not applicatle
oxpanses
Trade recaivahla lumover ratky Ravanue from opeialions Average lrade recelvablas 1.67 1.89 -11.53% |Nat applcatie
Trade payables umover ratio Cosl of malerial consuned HAvorage irade payable 1.66 1.87 ~11.21% |Not applicatie
Project relaled expanse
Nel capital lumaver ratio Reverue [rom operations Working capital (Current assals 207 3.25] -36,18% | Decrease is prmarly due lo increase in thej
lass currenl liabilifies) curcenl assels  (trade  receivables  and|
conlract assels)
Net profit rafio Net prafil after lax Total income: B.44% 8.46% -10.81% | Na! applicablz
Return on capilal employed (ROCE) |Eamings before inferast and|Capital emplayed (Total equily| 23.34% 30.43% -23.30% [Not applicabls
taxas + fotal current & non-cuirani
borrowings— cash and cash|
equivalents and alher bank|
balances)
Relurn on invastmant Nat profit after laxes Total assets 5,74% 7.80% -26.35% | Reduction is primarily on account of Increase|

in lrade recelvables and corfracl assels In|
1he currenl year,

Other statutory information as per Schedule Il to the Act
(i) The Company daes not have any Benami property, whera any proceeding has bean inftiated of panding against tho Company for holding any Benam| property,

(i) The Company dogs nol have any charges or satisfaction which is yel to ba registersd wilh Regisirar of Gompanies beyand the stalutory period,

(i) The Company has nol tradzd or invested in Cryplo currancy or Virtual Gurrency during the reporting years.

() The Company daes nol have any such transaction which is nol recordad in the boaks of account that has besn surrendered or disclosed as income during tha year in the fax assessments under tha Incame Tax Acl, 1961
(such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Incame Tax Act, 1961.

“{v) The Company has compliad with the number of layers prescibod under the Companias Act, 2013

{vi] There are no Wransactions or outstanding balances with struck off companies as at and lor the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 excepl below:

Hame of Company Nalure of transactions 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 |Relationship
Eweels Logislics Services India Advance [ 0 | Vendor
Lorshi Enterprises Private Limited Payablas 0 0 | Vendor
Taneesh Travel And Tours Private | Advance o 0 | Vendor
Kedar Badr Construction Private Payahles 3 3 | Vendor
Rishabh Human Rasource Sokilian | Payablzs. 2 4 | Vendor
Private Limfted®

TMSV Parpumam Infrastnicture Payables 0 1 | Vendor
(OPC) Privale Limited"

Unive Orbital Private Limited Payables 3 3 | Vendor
Vidhudi Englneering Indla Private Payables o 0 | Vendor
Plinth Construcbon Private Limited | Payables 0 0 | Vendor
Jyotipriya Infratech Private Limited | Payables 0 1 | Vendor

* Balance viritien back
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53 The Company has nol received any fund from any person(s) or enlily(ies), including foreign enlilies (Funding Parly) wilh the ing (whethi ded In wriling or
olherwise) that lhe Company shall :
(i) direclly or indireclly lend or Inves! In olher persons or entities Idenlified In any manner whalsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ullimate Beneficlarles); or

(ii) provide any guaranlee, securily of (he like on behall of the Ullimale Beneficiaries.

54 The Company has nol advanced or loaned o Invested funds to any ofher person(s) or enllly(les), including forelgn enlilles (i Jiarlas) with the und ing (whether
recorded In wriling or othervise) thal the intermedtary shall :
(i) directly ar Indireclly lend or favest In other persons or enlitles identified In any manner whalsoever by or on behall of (he C: y ( Ultimale Beneficlarles); or
{ll) provide any guaranlee, securily or Ihe like lo or on behalf of Ihe Ullimate Beneficlarles.

55 The Board of Dlreclars of the Company, al lhelr meeling held on 18 December 2021, had app i lhe sch ol lgamallon of Farisla Financlal Consullanls Private
Limiled (*Farlsta") and Deb Suppliers and Traders Privale Limiled ("Deb’) {herelnatter, colleclively referred as 'Ti Companles') wilh the Company under section 230 o

232 of tha Acl and other applicable pravisions of Ihe Act read with Companles (Compromises, Arrangemenls and Amalgamation) Rules, 2016 (lhe Merger), The aforesaid
Scheme of Merger has been approved by National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbal Bench (NCLT') vide ils order dated 14 August 2024 pronouncing 01 April 2023 as the
Appainted Dale, The cerlified lnte copy of the NCLT order has been filed by the Company wilh Reglstrar of Companies on 23 August 2024 (‘Effeclive Dale’).

Pursuant lo the sald NCLT order and the scheme of lhe Merger, the Company has Issued 1,445,940 and 1,450,840 equily shares (having face value of INR 1 each) to the
sharsholders of Farisla and Deb, respectively In Ihe swap ratio as menlianed in lhe NCLT order. From the equily shares issued lo tham, 1,449,480 equily shares previously held
by Farista and 1,444,300 eqully shares previously held by Deb (having face value of INR 1 each) In {he Company have been reduced from the Effective Dale. Further, Deb and
Farisla have been amalgamaled wilh Ihe Company from the Effeclive Dale,

Managemenl has assessed (hal the Merger Is nol In the nalure of business combination as per Ind AS 103 - ‘Business Combinalions' as Farisla and Deb did nol have
Inpulsiprocesses through which any oulpul could be generated. Furlher, the impacl of the Merger Is nol malerial lo lhe Company. Consequenlly, lhe Impacl of lhe Merger has
taken from the Effective Dale In the bocks of lhe Company,

Assels acquired and labliitles assumed as on the Effective Dale:

Parllculars Amount

Income lax assels 28
Cash and cash equivalanis 15
Trade payables ()]
Net assels acquired (a) A2
Reduclion of exisling equily shares held by Farista and Deb In the Company as per (29)
lhe scheme

Issue of new equity shares lo (he Individual shareholders as per the scheme 29
Net Impact of eqully shares Issued (b} 0
Transferrad 1o relalned Ings sinca the merger Is not In the nature of 42
business comblination {a+b)

Notes:
a) There is no conlingenl consideration payable as a parl of the scheme of merger,
b) Transaclion costs have been expensed in the slatement of profil and loss.

56 Minislry of Corpotale Affairs (MCA) hes prascribed a requirement for companies under Ihe proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounis) Rules, 2014 Inserled by lha

Companles (A ) A iy Rules, 2021 requiring companles, which uses accounling software for malnlalning its bocks of sccounl, shall use only such accounling
software which has a fealure of recording audil Irall of each and every kransaclion, crealing an edit log of each change made In the books of account slong with Ihe dale when
such changes were made and ensuring thal the audil Irail Is nol disabled.

The Company uses an accounting software for malnlaining ils books of accounl which Is operaled by a lhird parly software service provider which has a fealure of recording
audil trall {edit log) facilily and the same has operated throughoul the year for all relevanl Iransaclions recorded In the soft al an appllcalion level. The ‘Ind Service
Auditar’s A Report on the Descriplion of Conlrols, thelr Deslgn and Operaling Effecliveness’ (Type 2 report’ Issued In accordance wilh ISAE 3402, Assurance Reporls
on Canlrols at a Service Organisation) does not provide any information on the audil trall feature al dalabase level for Ihe sald accounling software. The audil trail fealure is nol
tampered wilh, where such lealure Is enabled. Furlher, the audil irail has been preserved al Ihe application level by the Company as per Ihe slalulory requiremenls for record
relention.

These are Ihe noles to lhe financlal slalemenls referred te In our report of even dale

For Walker Chandlok 4 Co LLP Forand on behall of the Board of Directors
Charlered Accounla: Vikran Engineering Limited
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